
 

 
 

Agenda 

 

Page 1 

Scrutiny Co-ordination Committee 
 

Time and Date 
10.00 am on Wednesday, 20 July, 2022 
 
Place 
Committee Room 3, Council House, Coventry  
 
 

 

 
Public Business 
 
1. Apologies and Substitutions   

 
2. Declarations of Interest   

 
3. Minutes   

 
 (a) To agree the minutes of the previous meeting held on 22 June, 2022  

(Pages 3 - 6) 
 

 (b) Matters Arising   
 

4. One Coventry Plan Annual Performance Report 2021-22  (Pages 7 - 90) 
 

 Report of the Chief Executive 
 

5. One Coventry Plan 2022 - 2030: Engagement Approach and Emerging 
Themes  (Pages 91 - 100) 

 

 Briefing Note of the Chief Partnerships Officer 
 

6. Scrutiny Co-ordination Committee Work Programme and Outstanding 
Issues 2022/23  (Pages 101 - 104) 

 

 Report of the Director of Law and Governance 
 

7. Any Other Items of Public Business   
 

 Any other items of public business which the Chair decides to take as a matter 
of urgency because of the special circumstances involved. 
 

Private Business 
 
Nil 
 
 

Julie Newman, Director of Law and Governance, Council House, Coventry 
 

Public Document Pack



Page 2 

Tuesday, 12 July 2022 
 
Note: The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is 
Suzanne Bennett Governance Services - Telephone: 024 7697 2299 mail 
Suzanne.bennett@coventry.gov.uk 
 
 
Membership: Councillors N Akhtar (Chair),  M Ali, R Auluck, L Bigham,  J Innes,  
P Male, C Miks, G Ridley and R Singh 
 
By invitation Councillor G Duggins  
 
Public Access  
Any member of the public who would like to attend the meeting in person is 
encouraged to contact the officer below in advance of the meeting regarding 
arrangements for public attendance. A guide to attending public meeting can be found 
here: https://www.coventry.gov.uk/publicAttendanceMeetings 
 
 

Suzanne Bennett Governance Services - Telephone: 024 7697 2299  
E-mail: suzanne.bennett@coventry.gov.uk 

 

mailto:Suzanne.bennett@coventry.gov.uk
https://www.coventry.gov.uk/publicAttendanceMeetings


 
– 1 – 

 

Coventry City Council 
Minutes of the Meeting of Scrutiny Co-ordination Committee held at 10.00 am on 

Wednesday, 22 June 2022 
 

Present:  

Members: Councillor N Akhtar (Chair) 

 Councillor C Miks (Deputy Chair) 

 Councillor M Ali 
Councillor R Auluck 
Councillor L Bigham 
Councillor J Birdi (substitute for Councillor G Ridley) 
Councillor R Singh 
 

Other Members: Councillor P Akhtar, Deputy Cabinet Member for Policing and 
Equalities 

 
Employees (by Service):  

Law and Governance 
 
Public Health and 
Wellbeing 
 
 
Other Representatives: 

G Holmes, A West 
 
A Box, R Chapman, A Duggal (Director of Public Health and 
Wellbeing) J Ross 
 
 
R Gakhal, Panahghar 
A Kaur, Panahghar 
S Sullivan, The Haven 
 

Apologies: Councillor J Innes, AS Khan, P Male and G Ridley  
 

 
Public Business 
 
1. Declarations of Interest  

 
There were no disclosable pecuniary interests. 
 

2. Minutes  
 
The Minutes of the meeting held on 6th April 2022 were agreed and signed as a 
true record.  
 
There were no matters arising. 
 

3. Domestic Abuse Local Partnership Board  
 
Councillor P Akhtar, Deputy Cabinet Member for Policing and Equalities, 
introduced the item in his role as Chair of the Domestic Abuse Local Partnership 
Board. He provided an overview of the work of the Partnership over the last year 
including the completion of the needs assessment, extending the Domestic Abuse 
Strategy to 2025 with a new action plan. The Partnership Board’s role was to 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3a



 

 
– 2 – 

 

support, guide and evaluate the strategy that aims to reduce repeat victimisation 
and risk of harm, prevent domestic abuse occurring and reduce offending. 
 
The Committee then received a presentation on Coventry’s Response to the 
Domestic Abuse Act 2021 Progress Update which outlined the following points:  
 

 The governance system including the Local Partnership Board and a 
Steering Group. 

 Progress on each section of the Domestic Abuse Act, including the provision 
and the commencement date 

 Data on demand including helpline calls and MARAC cases 

 Data from the police covering total number of reports both crime and non-
crime, number of charges and summons, number of cases where there are 
evidential difficulties and the number of cases where the victim does not 
support or withdraws from prosecution 

 Coventry’s response to the Domestic Abuse Act 

 Strategic Needs Assessment published October 2021 

 Strategy Update and Addendum – Published Oct 2021 

 Refreshed Action plan – Updated Oct 2021 

 Training Needs Assessment - ongoing  

 Training Delivery – ongoing 
 

 Details of the needs assessment including surveys, focus groups, data 
analysis and 1-2-1 interviews 

 Information about commissioned services and what they offer to both victims 
and perpetrators 

 New provision for victims and children in safe accommodation 

 Information about the Early Intervention Pilot based with the Police, as well 
as Domestic Abuse champions in a wide range of agencies 

 The implementation of the plan including Safe/Supported Accommodation, 
Voices of Victims/Survivors and other groups 

 The challenges working with perpetrators 

 Representatives from partner services, the Haven and Panahghar, provided 
information and case studies 

 
Following the presentation, the Committee asked a number of questions and the 
following points were discussed: 
 

 The recovery of the criminal justice system from covid, including the police 
and the courts and the impact this had on resources, experience and 
capacity 

 Age and elder abuse were included in the action plan 

 Information about service in the Armed Forces was gathered as part of an 
assessment and signposting was made where relevant to support obligations 
under the Armed Forces Covenant. 

 Services were user led and responded to their needs, staff were recruited 
from a range of cultural backgrounds and language skills 

 There was no waiting list as there was a network of services which could be 
referred to if needed. Service providers were always looking to see how they 
could share learning from other services and organisations. 

Page 4



 

 
– 3 – 

 

 Communication materials were consulted on with service users and former 
service users 

 There was a lot of training and support being offered to the judicial system 
and magistrates in relation to Domestic Abuse 

 Concerns about intergenerational abuse and the perpetuation of abuse was 
recognised and the importance of early intervention was highlighted 

 The low number of cases taken through to prosecution was highlighted as a 
concern but it was a priority of the Partnership. It was explained to the 
committee that domestic abuse was a very complex issue and there were 
many and wide ranging factors which lead to a victim not pursuing 
prosecution. Part of the support process was to listen to the victim’s wishes 
and recognise that victims had a choice. 

 There was a discussion about the importance of early intervention, including 
through schools with children from nursery and reception age, about healthy 
relationships 

 The Director of Public Health informed the Committee that there was no 
evidence that large publicity campaigns are effective in getting the message 
across and that a grass roots approach was more effective. This was the 
reasoning behind the recruitment of domestic abuse champions and also 
conversations and drop-in sessions in local communities was a more effect 
way to get the message across. 

 Information leaflets were also considered to be a risk factor as if they were 
found in possession of a victim this could escalate the abuse. 

 The involvement of male staff in terms of supporting male victims as well as 
perpetrators was recognised as important and a piece of work for further 
development. 

 
RESOLVED that the Scrutiny Co-ordination Committee:_ 
 

1) Notes the presentation and progress made to date 
 

2) Writes to the Cabinet Member for Policing and Equalities, in his 
role as Chair of the Police and Crime Board, requesting that he 
works closely with the Police and Crime Commissioner, West 
Midlands Police and partners to increase capacity and resources 
with regard to domestic abuse 

 
3)  Requests a further item to consider progress on early 

intervention, particularly in schools, is added to the Work 
Programme. 

 
4. Scrutiny Annual Report 2021-22  

 
The Scrutiny Co-ordination Committee received the Scrutiny Annual Report 2021-
22. 
 
RESOLVED that the Scrutiny Co-ordination Committee:  
 

1)  Accepts the content of the report at Appendix 1  
 

2)  Recommends that Council considers the Scrutiny Annual Report 
2021/22 at its next available meeting 

Page 5



 

 
– 4 – 

 

 
 
 
 

5. Scrutiny Co-ordination Committee Work Programme and Outstanding Issues  
 2022/2023  

 
The Scrutiny Co-ordination Committee considered their Work Programme for the 
current Municipal year. 
  
RESOLVED that the Scrutiny Co-ordination Committee: 
 

1) Approves the draft Work Programme 
 

2) Adds a Task and Finish Group on Inequalities to the Work 
Programme 
 

3) Circulates an invite to Committee Members to participate in a Task 
and Finish Group on Inequalities 

 
6. Any Other Items of Urgent Public Business  

 
There were no additional items of urgent public business. 
 
 
 
 

(Meeting closed at 12:15pm)  

  

Page 6



 Public report 
Cabinet 

 
 
 

 
Scrutiny Co-ordination Committee 20 July 2022 
Cabinet 30 August 2022 
 
Name of Cabinet Member: 
Cabinet Member for Policy and Leadership – Councillor G Duggins 
 
Director approving submission of the report: 
Chief Executive 
 
Ward(s) affected: 
All 
 
Title: 
One Coventry Plan Annual Performance Report 2021-22 
 
 
Is this a key decision? 
No 
 
 
Executive summary: 
 
Our One Coventry Plan sets out our shared vision and priorities for Coventry. This annual 
performance report is a retrospective report about our performance towards our priorities 
between April 2021 and March 2022. As our One Coventry Plan is currently being refreshed, this 
report sets out our performance towards our current One Coventry performance metrics, but also 
includes our emerging metrics to provide a baseline for the new One Coventry Plan. As before, 
for each of the priorities, this report sets out the trends, actions taken, and performance metrics 
to provide an assessment of the progress made against previous years and with other places. 
 
Recommendations: 
 
Scrutiny Co-ordination Committee is asked to: 
 

1. Consider the Council’s performance as set out in the performance report. 
 
2. Identify any issues they may wish to raise with Cabinet. 
 
3. Identify areas that Scrutiny Co-ordination Committee or other Scrutiny Boards may 

wish to address as part of this year’s scrutiny work programme. 
 
Cabinet is asked to: 
 

1. Consider any recommendations from Scrutiny Co-ordination Committee. 
 
2. Approve the performance report. 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4

http://www.coventry.gov.uk/performance/
https://edemocracy.coventry.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=151&MId=12735&Ver=4
https://edemocracy.coventry.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=124&MId=12817&Ver=4
https://edemocracy.coventry.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=124&MId=12817&Ver=4
https://www.coventry.gov.uk/councillors/54/george_duggins
https://www.coventry.gov.uk/council-structure/chief-executive
https://www.coventry.gov.uk/performance
https://www.coventry.gov.uk/performance
http://www.coventry.gov.uk/performance/


 

3. Consider the Council’s performance this year and identify areas that they wish to 
address in further detail as part of the refresh of the One Coventry Plan. 
 

List of appendices included: 
 
Appendix I – One Coventry Plan Annual Performance Report 2021-22 
Appendix II – One Coventry Performance Management Framework 
 
Background papers: 
 
None 
 
Other useful documents: 
 
One Coventry Plan www.coventry.gov.uk/councilplan  
Performance and performance management framework www.coventry.gov.uk/performance  
Statement of accounts www.coventry.gov.uk/statementofaccounts  
 
Has it been or will it be considered by Scrutiny? 
 
Yes – Scrutiny Co-ordination Committee July 2022 
 
Has it been or will it be considered by any other Council Committee, Advisory Panel, or 
other body? 
 
No 
 
Will this report go to Council? 
 
No 
 
  

Page 8

https://coventry-city-council.github.io/performance/2021-22/
https://coventry-city-council.github.io/performance/framework/
https://www.coventry.gov.uk/councilplan
https://www.coventry.gov.uk/performance
https://www.coventry.gov.uk/statementofaccounts
https://edemocracy.coventry.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=151&MId=12735&Ver=4


 

Report title:  
One Coventry Plan Annual Performance Report 2021-22 
 
1. Context (or background) 
 
1.1 Our One Coventry approach describes the way that we do things, how we work together 

with our communities and partners to improve the city and improve people’s lives. One 
Coventry is a way of working that enables us to focus on the things that people value most 
of all, helping us to make the biggest possible impact on the lives of local people. Our One 
Coventry approach focuses on enabling people to live their best lives in a vibrant and 
prosperous city. This can only be achieved by listening to, and collaborating with, those 
who live, work, visit and do business in our city, by having different conversations and 
building on the great things that are already happening. 
 

1.2 The One Coventry Plan is currently being refreshed. This will set out a new strategic vision 
for the Coventry of 2030. The plan sets out our approach to increasing the economic 
prosperity of the city and region; improving outcomes and tackling inequalities within our 
communities; and tackling the causes and consequences of climate change. The 
achievement of the vision and priorities in the plan will help Coventry benefit from 
opportunities presented by levelling-up; address the challenges faced as we recover from 
the COVID-19 pandemic; and deal with the issues most important to our communities, such 
as the cost-of-living crisis. These are things that the Council cannot do alone: we must 
continue to work in a way that ensures we maintain continued financial sustainability of the 
Council, as well as strengthening the Council’s role as a partner, enabler, and leader as an 
anchor organisation in Coventry. Our new plan is more focused on the needs and 
aspirations of our communities than ever before. We have listened and reflected on what 
people have been telling us and considered the key issues facing the City. 
 

1.3 This annual performance report sets out our performance towards our priorities from April 
2021 to March 2022. It sets out our performance towards our current One Coventry 
performance metrics, but also includes our emerging metrics to provide a baseline for the 
new One Coventry Plan. As before, for each of the priorities, this report sets out the trends, 
actions taken, and performance metrics to provide an assessment of the progress made 
against previous years and with other places. 
 

1.4 The Council uses agreed metrics to show progress made towards its priorities. This is 
supported by a wider basket of metrics including equality and perception metrics that help 
explain the trends and story behind the headlines. Metrics are selected from key strategies 
and aligned to directorate priorities and equality and health inequalities objectives. Further 
information including infographics, open data, maps, and the Coventry citywide intelligence 
hub are available at www.coventry.gov.uk/infoandstats. 

 
1.5 The Council’s priorities are delivered through strategies aligned to the One Coventry Plan; 

as set out in the performance management framework. As part of the performance 
management process, leadership teams within each directorate and the One Coventry 
Leadership Team have been involved in ensuring that the organisation’s key strategies are 
aligned to the One Coventry Plan. 

 
2. Options considered and recommended proposal 

 
2.1 This year, Coventry celebrated its year in the spotlight as the UK City of Culture, which 

officially ran from May 2021 to May 2022. Early analysis of Coventry's cultural mega-event 
saw 389,705 tickets issued for live events with a further estimated audience of 136,916 
attending unticketed live events across the city; and over 516,000 online audiences to a 
cultural programme so far - especially important in a cultural event that took place during 

Page 9

https://coventry-city-council.github.io/performance/2021-22/
https://coventry-city-council.github.io/performance/2021-22/
https://www.coventry.gov.uk/infoandstats


 

an unprecedented lockdown. The City of Culture programme has seen some £172 million 
pounds invested into the city including major upgrades to the city's public realm and cultural 
assets; and a total of 709 events delivered involving both professional artists and creatives 
as well as local artists and community organisations, bringing events to all eighteen wards 
of the city, including art, music, dance, and theatre. The ‘Story of Change’ underlying the 
City of Culture programme means that, in line with our One Coventry Plan priorities, the 
programme has been geared towards activities, events, and engagement that bring a long-
lasting legacy to the city, from investments to sustain and grow our cultural sector, to 
involving, engaging, and enabling all communities, especially those who are least likely to 
access and benefit from publicly funded arts and culture. 
 

2.2 The city’s year as the City of Culture, however, happened during a period of continued 
significant national and international challenges. In May 2021, as the City of Culture year 
got off to a start, COVID-19 pandemic-related restrictions remained in place. This created 
difficulties for a cultural mega-event seeking to bring people together. And as a result, 
plans have had to be rapidly adapted and changed in line with the rules and restrictions at 
the time. Now, into 2022, the end of our year in the spotlight has coincided with the worst 
escalation in hostilities in Europe since 1991 with Russia’s War on Ukraine – which is one 
of the reasons behind the rapid rise in the cost of living – with UK annual inflation in April 
2022 the highest it has been since April 1991. The impact of this cost-of-living crisis on 
communities across the city is yet to be fully realised, as people right across the city face 
rapidly rising energy, fuel, food, and housing costs. 
 

2.3 Working in a One Coventry approach, the Council, partner organisations, and community 
groups right across the city has responded to the twin challenges of the COVID-19 
pandemic and the cost-of-living crisis by being nimble and adaptable. During the pandemic, 
the Council and its partners took on additional duties, from supporting residents and 
businesses during pandemic-related lockdowns and restrictions, to the distribution of 
energy rebates and grants to Council taxpayers. Additionally, there has been, and will 
continue to be, more indirect impacts as residents and communities who previously have 
never needed local authority support face difficulties which mean that they will find 
themselves in a position of requiring additional help and support from the Council. 
 

2.4 The One Coventry Plan 2016-2024 is measured using 75 metrics, of which 32 metrics 
improved; 8 stayed the same; 18 got worse; can’t say for 10 metrics; and progress is not 
available for the remaining 7 metrics. This means, 69% (40/58) of directional metrics 
(excluding cannot say or not available) improved or stayed the same. 
 

2.5 As with last year, several metrics are not available this year. This is because there is limited 
data on school performance because of exam cancellations last summer. 

 
2.6 Many of the Council’s key priorities have an equality dimension or address an inequality 

caused by economic or social circumstances. Consequently, this report also sets out how 
the Council addresses these equality and health inequalities. 

 
2.7 This report also includes emerging metrics against the proposed new One Coventry Plan 

2022-2030. Where available, this report sets out the current performance and the direction 
of travel for those metrics over the past year. This is intended to establish a baseline for 
comparison in future years. 

 
3. Results of consultation undertaken 
 
3.1 No consultation has been undertaken in relation to this Annual Performance Report. A full 

consultation is taking place in relation to the refresh of the One Coventry Plan. 
 

Page 10



 

3.2 Several metrics come from the biennial Coventry Household Survey, which is based on 
responses from a statistically representative sample of 4,000 residents. 

 
4. Timetable for implementing this decision 
 
4.1 This is not applicable for this performance report. 

 
5. Comments from the Director of Finance and the Director of Law and Governance 
 
5.1 Financial implications 

Delivery of the Council’s objectives will have an impact on the Council’s overall financial 
position. However, there are no direct financial implications from this report. 

 
5.2 Legal implications 

The single data list sets out a list of all the datasets that local government must submit to 
central government. In addition, the Government’s local government transparency code 
sets out the minimum datasets local authorities should publish; the frequency it should be 
published; and how it should be published. There is no requirement placed on local 
authorities to publish a report on its performance or any requirement on the Council to 
publish performance on any metrics. 
 
Coventry City Council does so as it is committed to providing information that helps the 
Council work together with neighbours and partners, fulfilling its One Coventry Plan vision, 
priorities, values, and ways of working; and sees it as good practice to do so. 
 

6. Other implications 
 
6.1 How will this contribute to achievement of the Council’s key priorities? 

 
The performance report sets out the progress made towards the One Coventry Plan, that 
is, the Council’s vision and priorities. The performance management framework sets out 
how the Council plans and organises the resources at its disposal to achieve the vision and 
priorities, as set out in the Council Plan. 

   
6.2 How is risk being managed? 

 
The performance report helps the Council manage risk by measuring and reviewing 
progress in relation to the priorities of the One Coventry Plan. It identifies areas where we 
are making good progress, areas where progress is not as expected, and areas where the 
Council needs to take corrective action. 

 
6.3 What is the impact on the organisation? 

 
The One Coventry Plan impacts on the whole organisation. Effective performance 
management arrangements at all levels will help to ensure that the Council’s priorities are 
delivered. 

 
6.4 Equalities / EIA 

 
The Council’s performance management framework and reporting arrangements must 
have due regard to the public sector equality duty under section 149 of the Equality Act 
2010. This includes the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, and 
victimisation; to meet the needs of people regardless of their background; and to 
encourage all people to participate in public life, or in other activities where their 
participation is low.  

Page 11

http://goo.gl/ckGp0


 

 
Many of the key priorities set out in the One Coventry Plan are also equality objectives. In 
addition, a specific set of equality objectives has been agreed and progress against these 
is reported annually to the Cabinet Member (Policing & Equalities). This contributes to 
meeting the Equality Act 2010 (Specific Duties) Regulations 2011. 

 
6.5 Implications for (or impact on) climate change and the environment 

 
The Council has confirmed our commitment to addressing the issue of climate change and 
was one of the first local authorities to produce a climate strategy. This strategy is currently 
being refreshed. This report sets out measures including air quality, energy use, and 
carbon dioxide emissions from local authority operations. As part of the refresh of the One 
Coventry Plan, tackling the causes and consequences of climate change is becoming one 
of our three key priorities. 

 
6.6 Implications for partner organisations 

 
In line with our One Coventry approach, this report also includes metrics where the 
contribution of partners is essential to their delivery. 
 

Report author(s): 
 
Names and job titles: 
 
Si Chun Lam 
Insight Manager 
 
Bev McLean 
Performance Information Officer 
 
Service: 
Public Health, Insight and Migration Division 
 
Contact: 
SiChun.Lam@coventry.gov.uk  
insight@coventry.gov.uk 
 
Enquiries should be directed to the above persons. 
 

Contributor/ 
approver name 

Title Service Date doc 
sent out 

Date 
response 
received or 
approved 

 
Contributors: 

Adam Hunt Head of Property and Development 
(Strategic Lead) 

Property Services & 
Development 

20/04/2022 10/05/2022 

Adrienne 
Bellingeri 

Head of Customer Service Housing and 
Transformation 

13/04/2022 16/06/2022 

Alan Carr Asset Management Engineer Highways Technical 
Services 

12/04/2022 25/05/2022 

Alex Dickson Business Development Manager Education & Skills 12/04/2022 24/05/2022 

Andrew 
Errington 

Head of Practice Development & 
Safeguarding (Adults Principal Social 
Worker) 

Adult Services 06/05/2022 06/05/2022 

Anne Brennan Senior Advisor - Education 
Improvement 11-19(25) 

Education & Skills 12/04/2022 23/06/2022 

Anthony Kemp Analyst Public Health, Insight 
Team  

14/06/2022 23/06/2022 

Page 12

mailto:SiChun.Lam@coventry.gov.uk
mailto:insight@coventry.gov.uk


 

Contributor/ 
approver name 

Title Service Date doc 
sent out 

Date 
response 
received or 
approved 

Inderjit Kaur Policy Development Manager 
(Migration) 

Migration Team, Public 
Health 

22/06/2022 23/06/2022 

Navjot Johal Programme Delivery Manager 
(Migration) 

Migration Team, Public 
Health 

22/06/2022 
 

23/06/2022 

Barrie Strain Head of Revenues Finance  12/04/2022 05/05/2022 

Brian Martin Assistant Fleet Manager Integrated Transport Unit 19/04/2022 31/05/2022 

Caron Archer  Senior Engineer Traffic Management 19/04/2022  

Catherine 
Aldridge 

Programme Manager – Lifestyles Public Health and 
Wellbeing, Insight & 
Migration 

14/06/2022 14/06/2022 

David 
Woodhouse 

Lead Performance Analyst Education & Skills 12/04/2022 05/05/2022 

Debbie 
Cashmore 

Senior Analyst Public Health and 
Wellbeing, Insight & 
Migration 

19/06/2022 23/06/2022 

Graham Hood Head of Streetpride & Greenspace  Streetscene & Regulatory 
Services 

14/04/2022 09/05/2022 

Harbir Nagra Programme Manager Public Health Team 13/04/2022 03/05/2022 

Ian Palmer Economic Growth Officer Business, Investment and 
Culture 

20/04/2022 06/05/2022 

Jane Craig Health Protection Project Manager Public Health and 
Wellbeing, Insight & 
Migration 

13/04/2022 26/04/2022 

Jane Fowles Consultant in Public Health Medicine Public Health and 
Wellbeing, Insight & 
Migration 

13/04/2022 11/05/2022 

Jayne Ross Programme Manager – Domestic 
Violence 

Public Health and 
Wellbeing, Insight & 
Migration 

22/06/2022 22/06/2022 

Jaspal Mann Policy, Equalities & Diversity Officer Public Health and 
Wellbeing, Insight & 
Migration 

01/06/2022 16/06/2022 

Jatinder Surpal  Analyst Public Health, Insight 
Team  

14/06/2022 23/06/2022 

Jo Smith Senior Commissioning Manager – 
Children 

Children’s Services 22/06/2022 23/06/2022 

Kevin 
Coughlan 

Performance Manager (Education, 
Youth Offending Service & Early 
Years) 

Education & Skills 12/04/2022 14/06/2022 

Kristi Larsen Lead Officer - Consult & Engagement Public Health Insight Team 01/06/2022 08/06/2022 

Louise Hewitt Waste Support Officer Streetscene & Regulatory 
Services 

14/04/2022 25/05/2022 

Mandeep 
Chouhan 

Customer Services Manager Housing & Transformation 12/04/2022 23/06/2022 

Martin Lawlor Information Officer, Community 
Safety Team 

Streetscene & Regulatory 
Services 

12/04/2022 03/05/2022 

Martin McHugh Street Enforcement Manager Streetscene & Regulatory 
Services 

12/04/2022 05/05/2022 

Matthew Dillow  Business Development Manager Climate Change & 
Sustainability 

12/04/2022 23/06/2022 

Nick Jeffreys Operational Lead – Coventry Youth 
Offending Service 

Children’s Services 12/04/2022 05/05/2022 

Paul Ferris Insight (Social Care) Performance 
Manager 

Public Health and 
Wellbeing, Insight & 
Migration 

13/04/2022 23/06/2022 

Paul Jennings Finance Manager (Corporate 
Finance) 

Finance & Corporate 
Services 

12/04/2022 17/05/2022 

Sandeep 
Dhadday 

HR Advisor Human Resources 12/04/2022 16/06/2022 

Sara Azeem  Sustainability Internship Climate Change & 
Sustainability 

12/04/2022 23/06/2022 

Page 13



 

Contributor/ 
approver name 

Title Service Date doc 
sent out 

Date 
response 
received or 
approved 

Shamala 
Evans-Gadgil 

Senior Programme/Project Manager Transport and Innovation 19/04/2022 12/05/2022 

Shormee Saha Analyst Public Health, Insight 
Team  

14/06/2022 23/06/2022 

Simon Newell Ecology & Biodiversity Manager Planning Policy & 
Environmental 

18/05/2022 23/06/2022 

Thomas Evans Senior Analyst Public Health and 
Wellbeing, Insight & 
Migration 

14/04/2022 23/06/2022 

Tim Healey Senior Analyst Public Health and 
Wellbeing, Insight & 
Migration 

14/04/2022 23/06/2022 

Tina Wukics Partnership Support Officer Transformation   
 

01/06/2022 06/06/2022 

Todd Williams Analyst Public Health, Insight 
Team  

14/06/2022 23/06/2022 

Tracey Denny Head of Service Localities and Social 
Care Operations 

Adult Services 06/05/2022 06/05/2022 

 
Approvers: 

Allison Duggal Director of Public Health and 
Wellbeing 

Public Health and 
Wellbeing, Insight & 
Migration 

23/06/2022 28/06/2022 

Andrew 
Walster 

Director of Streetscene & Regulatory 
Services 

Streetscene & Regulatory 
Services 

23/06/2022 07/07/2022 

Andy Williams Director of Business, Investment & 
Culture 

Business, Investment & 
Culture 

23/06/2022 07/07/2022 

Colin Knight Director of Transportation & 
Highways 

Transportation & Highways 23/06/2022 07/07/2022 

John Gregg Director of Children’s Services Children’s Services 23/06/2022 01/07/2022 

Kirston Nelson Chief Partnerships Officer Education & Skills 23/06/2022 29/06/2022 

Michelle 
McGinty 

Strategic Lead Transformation & 
Change 

Transformation 23/06/2022 29/06/2022 

Nigel Hart Head of Communications Communications 23/06/2022 07/07/2022 

Paul Ward Head of ICT & Digital Human Resources 23/06/2022 07/07/2022 

Pete Fahy Director of Adult Services Adult Services 23/06/2022 30/06/2022 

Richard Moon Director of Property Services & 
Development 

Property Services & 
Development 

23/06/2022 07/07/2022 

Sue Newing Chief People Officer Human Resources 23/06/2022 27/06/2022 

Names of approvers for submission: 

(Officers and members) 

Barry Hastie Chief Operating Officer  Finance 23/06/2022 07/07/2022 
Julie Newman Chief Legal Officer Law and Governance 23/06/2022 07/07/2022 

Martin Reeves Chief Executive 23/06/2022 07/07/2022 
Councillor G 
Duggins 

Cabinet Member for Policy and Leadership 01/07/2022 07/07/2022 

 
This report is published on the Council’s website: www.coventry.gov.uk/meetings 

Page 14

http://www.coventry.gov.uk/meetings


 

 

One Coventry Plan
Annual Performance Report 2021-22

www.coventry.gov.uk/performancePage 15



O
n

e
 C

o
v

e
n

try
 P

la
n

 A
n

n
u

a
l P

e
rfo

rm
a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt 2

0
2

1
-2

2

 

 

2 

 

Table of 
contents 
Infographics ............................................................. 3 

Overview .................................................................. 8 

What is One Coventry? ......................................... 8 

What is the One Coventry Plan? .......................... 8 

About this report .................................................... 8 

Executive summary............................................... 10 

Performance towards the One Coventry Plan 
2016-2024 ........................................................... 11 

Baseline towards the One Coventry Plan 2022-
2030 .................................................................... 11 

Increasing the economic prosperity of the city 
and region .............................................................. 12 

A challenging global economic context ............... 13 

Working with existing businesses in the city to 
grow and expand ................................................ 14 

Investing in transport and digital infrastructure ... 15 

Delivering a capital regeneration programme ..... 15 

Delivering a strong and tangible legacy of 
opportunity .......................................................... 16 

Helping people into work..................................... 20 

Actively supporting residents to improve their skills 
and secure better jobs ........................................ 22 

Working with partners to ensure the continued 
provision of high-quality affordable housing 
throughout the city .............................................. 24 

Increasing the economic prosperity of the city and 
region metrics ..................................................... 25 

Improving outcomes and tackling inequalities 
within our communities ........................................ 27 

Effectively delivering the essential services that 
matter most to our communities ......................... 28 

Strengthening our Marmot city approach, 
encouraging healthy lifestyles and provide quality 
healthcare ........................................................... 28 

Tackling inequalities through a collaborative 
approach ............................................................. 32 

Tackling violence, including domestic abuse and 
sexual violence ................................................... 33 

Affordable access to heating, and insulation ......35 

Protecting children and supporting families to give 
children the best start in life ................................36 

Integrated early help, education partnership work 
and implementing the Family Valued programme
 .............................................................................37 

Improving the educational attainment of our 
children and young people ..................................38 

Supporting children most affected by disruption to 
their learning ........................................................39 

Enabling people to live independently .................40 

Supporting people experiencing mental ill-health
 .............................................................................42 

Integrating our refugee and migrant communities
 .............................................................................43 

Improving outcomes and tackling inequalities 
within our communities metrics ...........................44 

Tackling the causes and consequences of 
climate change .......................................................48 

Sustainability and climate change .......................49 

Low emissions pathway ......................................50 

Circular economy ................................................53 

Nature and resilience ..........................................54 

Equitable and people-centred .............................55 

Tackling the causes and consequences of climate 
change metrics ....................................................57 

Continued financial sustainability of the Council
 .................................................................................59 

Balancing future budgets and bridging budget 
gaps .....................................................................60 

Enhancing our digital offer ..................................61 

Retaining and developing talented staff ..............62 

Agile, flexible, and responsive workforce ............64 

Continued financial sustainability of the Council 
metrics .................................................................66 

  

Page 16



O
n

e
 C

o
v

e
n

try
 P

la
n

 A
n

n
u

a
l P

e
rfo

rm
a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt 2

0
2

1
-2

2
 

 

 

3 

Infographics 
  

One Coventry Plan
Annual Performance Report 2021-22

www.coventry.gov.uk/performance

Coventry had a year in 

the spotlight as the UK 

City of Culture, with more 

than a million people 

attending 700 events in-

person and online.

Employment remains 

lower than before the 

pandemic; efforts are 

being stepped up to 

upskill people to take up 

new job opportunities.

The number of people 

receiving long-term 

support from adult social 

care is stable; and for 

children, family valued 

has been introduced to 

support families better.

Demand for 

homelessness services 

have increased. A new 

Vulnerable Persons 

Forum is being piloted to 

provide joined-up help.

An independent Climate 

Change Board has been 

established to address 

climate mitigation, 

development of a circular 

economy & biodiversity.

Recycling and 

composting rates have 

decreased. This is, in 

part, due to the 

suspension of collections 

earlier this year due to 

industrial action.

The Council has 

committed to plant a tree 

for every citizen over the 

next decade. This year, 

20,000 trees have been 

planted.

New developments in the 

city will create more 

opportunities for 

residents, from the new 

Railway Station building 

to Two Friargate and 

City Centre South.

Assaults, harassment and 

domestic abuse have all 

increased. In line with the 

new domestic abuse 

act, a strategy has been 

developed to support 

victims and their children.

Page 17



O
n

e
 C

o
v

e
n

try
 P

la
n

 A
n

n
u

a
l P

e
rfo

rm
a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt 2

0
2

1
-2

2

 

 

4 

 

  

One Coventry Plan

Increasing the economic 

prosperity of the city and region

www.coventry.gov.uk/performance

4,028,000 visitor 

trips (2020)

-2.6 change in Council 

Tax Base from the 2009 

base (21/22)

94.7% year-on-year 

increase in footfall (21/22)

£28,699 
Regional GDP 

(per head) 

(2020)

£25,795 
Median annual pay 

for Coventry 

residents 

(2021)

£97,976 
Apprenticeship levy 

transferred to support 

non-levy paying 

firms (21/22)

10,120 active enterprises
333 enterprises per 10,000 residents (2021)

93% of school leavers aged 16+
continuing to a “sustained education, apprenticeship or employment 

destination” (19/20)

71.2%
Resident 

employment 

rate (Jan-Dec 21)

5.5%
Unemployment 

(model-based) 

(Jan-Dec 21)

4.4%
16-17-year-olds not in 

education, employment, or 

training (NEET) including 

not knowns (2021)

184*      152**
New jobs created with the support of the Job Shop* & Kickstart Scheme** 

(21/22)

Page 18



O
n

e
 C

o
v

e
n

try
 P

la
n

 A
n

n
u

a
l P

e
rfo

rm
a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt 2

0
2

1
-2

2
 

 

 

5 

  

34.7% Repeat 

victims of domestic abuse 

reported (21/22)

112 First time entrants 

to the youth justice 

system (21/22)

One Coventry Plan

Improving outcomes & tackling 

inequalities within our communities

www.coventry.gov.uk/performance

64.0 Female healthy 

life expectancy at birth 

(2018-20)

8,473 Fly-tips 

reported in the city 

(21/22)

61.1 Male healthy life 

expectancy at birth 

(2018-20)

67%
Adult social care met 

through short-term 

reablement 

(21/22)

90.5
Looked after children 

(rate per 10,000) 

(2022)

1167
Homeless cases 

prevented & relieved 

(21/22)

3,531 people receiving long-term adult social care support
That is a rate of 1,183 per 100,000 (2022)

62% satisfied with care support
people who use adult social care services (21/22)

105.6 Crime rate per 

1,000 population (21/22)

90% attending a good/outstanding school
Including primary, secondary and special schools (2022)

Page 19



O
n

e
 C

o
v

e
n

try
 P

la
n

 A
n

n
u

a
l P

e
rfo

rm
a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt 2

0
2

1
-2

2

 

 

6 

 

  

One Coventry Plan

Tackling the causes and 

consequences of climate change

www.coventry.gov.uk/performance

81% of unclassified 

roads in a 

good/acceptable 

condition (21/22)

46% of footways and 

pavements in a 

good/acceptable 

condition (21/22)

98% of both principal 

and non-principal roads in 

a good/acceptable 

condition (21/22)

9,010,075
Tonnes of CO₂

emissions from our 

operations (21/22)

83%
of trips into/out of 

central Coventry by 

vehicles (2021)

28.6%
Household waste 

recycled & composted 

(21/22)

438
Electric vehicle charging points in the city (21/22)

72
Council vehicles that are zero carbon emission (from 4 in 2021) (2022)

64
Cyclist road casualties (2021)

97
Pedestrian road casualties (2021)

311
Car occupant road casualties (2021)

Page 20



O
n

e
 C

o
v

e
n

try
 P

la
n

 A
n

n
u

a
l P

e
rfo

rm
a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt 2

0
2

1
-2

2
 

 

 

7 

  

415,254
transactions completed through self-service channels (21/22)

91.9% / 94.8% 
of households with access to full fibre and/or gigabit internet (2022)

3.44 
average Digital Exclusion Risk Index score by lower super output area (2021) 
(scores are from 0 to 10 with 10 representing a high risk of digital exclusion)

£8,914,277 
spent on agency staff 

(21/22)

One Coventry Plan

Continued financial 

sustainability of the Council

www.coventry.gov.uk/performance

12.97 days of staff 

sickness per full-time 

equivalents (21/22)

4,209.53 full-time 

equivalent employees in 

the Council (2022)

£315m
Business rates 

total rateable 

value

94%
Council tax collection 

rate (21/22)

£2.2m 
Investment income 

secured (21/22)

1,323 
participated in the latest staff survey (that is, 27% of our employees) (2021)

Page 21



O
n

e
 C

o
v

e
n

try
 P

la
n

 A
n

n
u

a
l P

e
rfo

rm
a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt 2

0
2

1
-2

2

 

 

8 

 

Overview 

What is One 
Coventry? 
Our One Coventry approach describes the 
way that we do things, how we work 
together with our communities and partners 
to improve the city and improve people’s 
lives. 

One Coventry is a way of working that 
enables us to focus on the things that 
people value most of all, helping us to make 
the biggest possible impact on the lives of 
local people. 

Our One Coventry approach focuses on 
enabling people to live their best lives in a 
vibrant and prosperous city. This can only 
be achieved by listening to, and 
collaborating with, those who live, work, visit 
and do business in our city, by having 
different conversations and building on the 
great things that are already happening. 

What is the One 
Coventry Plan? 
The One Coventry Plan sets out our shared 
vision and priorities for the city. 

The One Coventry Plan is currently being 
refreshed. This will set out a new strategic 
vision for the Coventry of 2030. The plan 
sets out our approach to increasing the 
economic prosperity of the city and region; 
improving outcomes and tackling 
inequalities within our communities; and 
tackling the causes and consequences of 
climate change. 

The achievement of the vision and priorities 
in the plan will help Coventry benefit from 
opportunities presented by levelling-up; 

address the challenges faced as we recover 
from the COVID-19 pandemic; and deal with 
the issues most important to our 
communities, such as the cost-of-living 
crisis. 

These are things that the Council cannot do 
alone: we must continue to work in a way 
that ensures we maintain continued financial 
sustainability of the Council, as well as 
strengthening the Council’s role as a 
partner, enabler, and leader as an anchor 
organisation in Coventry. 

Our new plan is more focused on the needs 
and aspirations of our communities than 
ever before. We have listened and reflected 
on what people have been telling us and 
considered the key issues facing the City. 

To have your say on the One Coventry 
Plan, visit www.coventry.gov.uk/ocp. 

About this report 
This annual performance report sets out our 
performance towards our priorities from 
April 2021 to March 2022. 

As the One Coventry Plan is being 
refreshed, this retrospective blends our 
existing One Coventry performance metrics 
with emerging ones; with the intention to 
enable this report to provide both a review 
of the city’s performance, as well as 
evidence to provide a baseline for the new 
One Coventry Plan. 

As before, for each of the priorities, this 
report sets out the trends, actions taken, 
and performance metrics to provide an 
assessment of the progress made against 
previous years and with other places. 

Metrics 

The Council uses agreed metrics to show 
progress made towards its priorities. This is 
supported by a wider basket of metrics 
including equality and perception metrics 

Page 22

http://www.coventry.gov.uk/ocp


O
n

e
 C

o
v

e
n

try
 P

la
n

 A
n

n
u

a
l P

e
rfo

rm
a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt 2

0
2

1
-2

2
 

 

 

9 

that help explain the trends and story behind 
the headlines. Metrics are selected from key 
strategies and aligned to directorate 
priorities and equality and health inequalities 
objectives. Further information including 
infographics, open data, maps, and the 
Coventry citywide intelligence hub are 
available at 
www.coventry.gov.uk/infoandstats. 

Abbreviations & symbols 
used 

 

Symbol Progress Target status 

 

Improved (or target 
already achieved) 

On-target 

 
Got worse Off-target 

 
Similar, unchanged, or 
statistically insignificant 

– 

 

Cannot say; no clear 
direction of travel 

– 

 
Not available or no 

updated data 
No target set 

WMCA 

CIPFA 

West Midlands Combined Authority 

Chartered Institute of Public Finance & 
Accountancy nearest neighbours 

 

 

07/07/2022 16:52:44  

Page 23

https://www.coventry.gov.uk/infoandstats


O
n

e
 C

o
v

e
n

try
 P

la
n

 A
n

n
u

a
l P

e
rfo

rm
a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt 2

0
2

1
-2

2

 

 

10 

 

Executive 
summary 
This year, Coventry celebrated its year in 
the spotlight as the UK City of Culture, 
which officially ran from May 2021 to May 
2022. Early analysis of Coventry’s cultural 
mega-event saw 389,705 tickets issued for 
live events with a further estimated 
audience of 136,916 attending unticketed 
live events across the city; and over 
516,000 online audiences to a cultural 
programme so far - especially important in a 
cultural event that took place during an 
unprecedented lockdown. 

The City of Culture programme has seen 
some £172 million pounds invested into the 
city including major upgrades to the city’s 
public realm and cultural assets; and a total 
of 709 events delivered involving both 
professional artists and creatives as well as 
local artists and community organisations, 
bringing events to all 18 wards of the city, 
including art, music, dance, and theatre. 

The ‘Story of Change’ underlying the City of 
Culture programme means that, in line with 
our One Coventry Plan priorities, the 
programme has been geared towards 
activities, events, and engagement that 
bring a long-lasting legacy to the city, from 
investments to sustain and grow our cultural 
sector, to involving, engaging, and enabling 
all communities, especially those who are 
least likely to access and benefit from 
publicly funded arts and culture. 

The city’s year as the City of Culture, 
however, happened during a period of 
continued significant national and 
international challenges. In May 2021, as 
the City of Culture year got off to a start, 
COVID-19 pandemic-related restrictions 
remained in place. This created difficulties 
for a cultural mega-event seeking to bring 
people together. And as a result, plans have 
had to be rapidly adapted and changed in 

line with the rules and restrictions at the 
time. 

Now, into 2022, the end of our year in the 
spotlight has coincided with the worst 
escalation in hostilities in Europe since 1991 
with Russia’s War on Ukraine – which is one 
of the reasons behind the rapid rise in the 
cost of living – with UK annual inflation in 
April 2022 the highest it has been since 
April 1991. The impact of this cost-of-living 
crisis on communities across the city is yet 
to be fully realised, as people right across 
the city face rapidly rising energy, fuel, food, 
and housing costs. 

The Council has had to respond to the twin 
challenges of the COVID-19 pandemic and 
the cost-of-living crisis by being nimble and 
adaptable. This has included working with 
our partners and our communities in new 
ways. The direct impact has included 
additional duties for the Council, from 
supporting residents and businesses during 
pandemic-related lockdowns and 
restrictions, to the distribution of energy 
rebates and grants to Council taxpayers. 

Additionally, there has been, and will 
continue to be, more indirect impacts as 
residents and communities who previously 
have never needed local authority support 
face difficulties which mean that they will 
find themselves in a position of requiring 
additional help and support from the 
Council. 

  

Page 24



O
n

e
 C

o
v

e
n

try
 P

la
n

 A
n

n
u

a
l P

e
rfo

rm
a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt 2

0
2

1
-2

2
 

 

 

11 

Performance towards 
the One Coventry Plan 
2016-2024 
The One Coventry Plan 2016-2024 is 
measured using 75 metrics, of which 32 
metrics improved; 8 stayed the same; 18 got 
worse; can’t say for 10 metrics; and 
progress is not available for the remaining 7 
metrics. This means, 69% (40/58) of 
directional metrics (excluding cannot say or 
not available) improved or stayed the same. 

Baseline towards the 
One Coventry Plan 
2022-2030 
This report also includes emerging metrics 
against the proposed new One Coventry 
Plan 2022-2030. This plan is currently out 
for public consultation. Where available, this 
report sets out the current metric value and 
the direction of travel for those metrics over 
the past year. This is intended to establish a 
baseline for comparison in future years.

32

8

18

10

7

75
headline

metrics

Performance in 2021/22

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

Performance over the years

Page 25



 

Increasing the 

economic 

prosperity of the 

city and region

  

Page 26



In
creasin

g
 the eco

n
o

m
ic p

ro
sp

erity of the city and reg
io

n
 

 

13 

A challenging global 
economic context 
While there was recovery in the national 
economy during 2021, after the negative 
growth in 2020 associated with the 
economic restrictions of global pandemic 
lockdowns, the current national economic 
outlook remains challenging and uncertain - 
and will likely impact on Coventry and its 
residents. 

This time last year the outlook was 
challenging after businesses and economic 
activity had taken a large hit, and the extent 
of the recovery and the speed in which it 
would come was unclear. The economy has 
grown gradually but notably in the last year, 
with spending and other economic activity 
coming back after COVID restrictions. 

At the end of 2021/22 (end of March 2022) 
nominal national GDP was 11% higher than 
it was at the end of 2020/21, a real growth 
rate of 8.7% after taking away the effect of 
inflation. These are very high annual growth 
figures compared to normal, however this 
bounce back comes after significant 
negative growth in the previous year and the 
annual growth rate will not sustain. It is 
estimated that at the end of March 2022 real 
GDP was 0.7% higher than pre-pandemic 
levels. 

However, growth in the local economy has 
slowed since 2016, putting the local 
economy in a worse position from which to 
recover from COVID-19 and to be resilient 
to the current challenges. Nonetheless, local 
labour market data shows that the net effect 
on households overall has been less 
significant so far; employment and 
unemployment rates amongst Coventry 
residents did not change significantly in 
2021 and are only slightly worse than they 
were before the pandemic. Also, average 
wages of Coventry residents in employment 
have continued to increase. Median 
earnings of Coventry residents in 
employment (part-time and full-time 

together) grew by an estimated 5% last year 
from £24,645 in 2020 to £25,795 in 2021, a 
faster growth rate than national and regional 
averages and on the back of increases also 
in 2020. 

National GDP growth has been slowing in 
recent months, in fact starting to fall in 
March and April 2022. Growing inflation 
threatens to have a depressive effect on 
economic activity and thereby GDP growth, 
with increasing prices threatening 
household budgets. Consumer spending 
that was returning after pandemic 
constriction will likely stall again as people 
reduce discretionary spending with the 
prices of essentials growing rapidly. 
Increasing costs will also affect local 
businesses. 

The headline national inflation rate – that is, 
the rate at which prices are rising, has been 
increasing gradually for the last year and 
reached 7.8% in April 2022 with predictions 
of further increases. This had been driven 
by, but not limited to, increases in the prices 
of energy, fuel, and food. Real incomes are 
likely to fall, affecting Coventry residents' 
quality of life. This 'cost of living crisis' is 
likely to have an impact on a wide variety of 
households and the local economy, along 
with significant public health implications. 

The overall effect may vary by industry in 
Coventry, the businesses in the city that rely 
on discretionary household spending on 
things that might be considered 'luxuries' in 
the coming months might be 
disproportionately affected - for example, 
parts of the hospitality industry might be 
vulnerable to further damage to add to the 
pandemic impact suffered. 

We will have to wait and see whether the 
current economic challenges, including 
widespread industrial action, will affect 
employment in Coventry and whether real 
wages will start to fall if price rises that are 
affecting residents become higher than 
wage increases. 

Page 27



In
creasin

g
 the eco

n
o

m
ic p

ro
sp

erity of the city and reg
io

n

 

 

14 

 

 

Working with existing 
businesses in the city 
to grow and expand 
There were 10,120 active enterprises in 
Coventry in 2021 – same as in 2020. This is 
a rate of 333 per 10,000 residents; lower 
than the rates in Warwickshire and the 
WMCA average. This makes it particularly 
important for the Council to work to 
encourage new business startups and grow 
and expand existing ones. 

Grants to businesses 

Over the course of the COVID-19 pandemic 
and associated lockdowns, 16,750 grants 
totalling £99,236,500 were delivered to 
Coventry businesses via the Council’s 
economic development service and 
business rates team. 

In 2021/22, the Council has awarded £1.72 
million in direct cash grants to 482 
businesses most affected by the Omicron 
variant of COVID-19 and awarded £3.97 
million in discretionary cash grants to 1,674 
businesses in the city. 

Business support 
programmes 

The Council continues to run three 
European Regional Development Fund 
(ERDF) business support programmes, with 
support moving to remote video 
conferencing, alongside online webinars. 
Grants of £2.04 million were paid out to 127 
companies. When taking matched funding 
into account, this represents a total 
investment of £7,058,352 to the Coventry 
and Warwickshire economy. 

Page 28



In
creasin

g
 the eco

n
o

m
ic p

ro
sp

erity of the city and reg
io

n
 

 

15 

Investing in transport 
and digital 
infrastructure 

Coventry Railway Station 

 

Above: the new station building and car park 
(clad in orange) alongside the renovated 
Grade-II listed original station building. 

£82m renovation of Coventry Railway 
Station is now complete, bringing a much-
needed expansion to the capacity of one of 
the country’s fastest-growing stations (by 
passenger numbers). The project includes a 
new station building, five retail units, a new 
633-space multi-storey car park, and 174 
bike storage spaces. 

Below: railway concourse inside the new 
station building. 

 

Delivering a capital 
regeneration 
programme 

City Centre South 

City Centre South will transform seven 
hectares of the city through a new mixed 
use development scheme that will provide 
over a thousand new homes, a high-quality 
public realm environment and modern, 
forward looking commercial, leisure and 
retail spaces. 

This year has seen outline planning consent 
for the scheme secured, and a compulsory 
purchase order made. 

Next steps include working with the 
developer on a scheme design to inform a 
reserved matters planning application; 
ongoing discussions and negotiations with 
property owners to acquire the land for the 
scheme, funding agreements and 
governance approvals. This should then 
allow for initial works to begin in late-2023. 

Increasing hotel capacity 

The leisure and hospitality sector has been 
hugely affected by the COVID-19 crisis over 
the past two years and this has, 
unsurprisingly, played a significant role in 
delays to the delivery of new hotels. 

After several delays due to COVID-19 
restrictions, the Telegraph Hotel opened in 
May 2021 in the former newspaper 
headquarters. This formed a key element of 
hospitality improvements to Corporation 
Street. 

Works on Hotel Indigo, a proposed 100-bed 
hotel, restaurant, and bar opposite One 
Friargate is now expected to begin in 
summer 2022, following new agreements 
and a repayable loan agreed in principle 
with its developer, Castlebridge. 

Page 29



In
creasin

g
 the eco

n
o

m
ic p

ro
sp

erity of the city and reg
io

n

 

 

16 

 

Friargate business district 

A second office block, Two Friargate, 
currently under construction, will provide 
134,000 square feet of high-quality 
commercial office space. This is expected to 
play an important part towards the city’s 
economic development and inward 
investment objectives. The building is 
expected to be ready for occupation by early 
2023. 

 

Delivering a strong and 
tangible legacy of 
opportunity 

UK City of Culture 2021 

Coventry was awarded the status of UK City 
of Culture 2021 back in December 2017 but 
saw its start delayed to May 2021 due to the 
pandemic. Over the past 12 months, some 
709 events took place, across all 18 wards 
of the city. In line with the ‘story of change’, 
activities and events featured professional 
artists and creatives alongside community 
participants. 

Early analysis reveals Coventry’s 
programme saw 389,705 tickets issued for 
live events with a further estimated 
audience of 136,916 attending un-ticketed 
live events across the city. The online 

audience, so important for the events 
affected by lockdown, is still growing and is 
currently estimated at over 516,000 for 
events created by the City of Culture Trust 
and its partners. 

 

Major achievements through the year 
included: The Turner Prize at the Herbert 
Art Gallery & Museum; two summers of 
performances at Assembly Festival Garden; 
the establishment of the UK’s first 
permanent immersive digital gallery, The 
Reel Store; the UK’s longest drone show, 
Our Wilder Family for a free audience of 
over 27,000; and the BBC Radio 1 Big 
Weekend for 88,000 people. 

 

Coventry – the third holder of the UK City of 
Culture title – adopted a unique approach of 
putting ‘co-creation’ at the centre of its 
programme, valuing local stories and the 
latent creativity across the city. This deeply 
rooted way of working, ‘The Coventry 
Model’, delivered a range of both intimate 
events and high impact activities to deliver 
long-lasting social value. Embedding 
engagement at a hyper-local level, the ‘co-
creation’ approach has seen city 
communities including faith groups, 
community centres, libraries, schools, 
community radio stations, the police, and 

Page 30



In
creasin

g
 the eco

n
o

m
ic p

ro
sp

erity of the city and reg
io

n
 

 

17 

local arts organisations all helping to shape 
and design the creative programme. 

Coventry secured more than £172m of 
direct investment to support the programme 
of events, the activities of the Trust, and the 
major upgrade programme of the city’s 
public realm and cultural assets. 

 

The volunteering programme, City Hosts, 
saw 1,515 local people trained as 
volunteers to give the biggest Coventry 
welcome to visitors, assisting with queries 
and wayfinding over a combined 35,913 
volunteering hours. The Hosts have become 
familiar figures on the city’s streets with 
most survey respondents agreeing they 
positively improved the experience of 
visiting the city. 

A final evaluation of the UK City of Culture 
year is due in 2024. The final report will also 
consider audience and impact analysis for 
the City of Culture affiliate programme 
developed and delivered with partner 
organisations. This will be made available 
on the Coventry 2021 Evaluation website at 
https://www.coventry21evaluation.info/. 

Following the end of the City of Culture 
year, the Coventry City of Culture Trust will 
build on successful programmes delivered 
during 2021 and will continue to commission 
new activities with cultural, educational and 
community organisations across the city. 

Supporting the creative, 
cultural and tourism sector 

The Council has won £760,000 in funding 
from the Community Renewal Fund to 
support the recovery of the city’s creative, 
cultural and tourism sectors. 

The Coventry and Warwickshire Local 
Enterprise Partnership received £19.8 
million from the Government’s Getting 
Building Fund programme. Of the total 
£19.8m fund, £11.7m were allocated to 
projects in Coventry. 

Projects completed and nearing completion 
include: 

• Visitor Information Pods in Coventry; 

• a new Digital Media training centre at 
Stratford-upon-Avon College; 

• the Catalyst project on Abbey Street 
in Nuneaton Town Centre; 

• the Commonwealth Convention 
Centre at the Coventry Building 
Society Arena improving the 
conferencing and exhibition spaces in 
advance of the Commonwealth 
Games 2022; 

• restorations to St Mary’s Guildhall 
including conservation and 
restorations to the 14th century 
Coventry Tapestry and work to 
uncover the medieval kitchen in the 
venue. 

Recovery in city centre 
footfall 

The footfall data presents a slightly 
complicated picture, partly due to the 
pandemic and the resultant anomalous and 
unstable trends in footfall. Further future 
analysis of this data and other new data 
sources coming online will give a fuller 
picture of footfall in 2021/22 and how footfall 
levels changed in Coventry’s year as UK 
City of Culture. 

Page 31

https://www.coventry21evaluation.info/


In
creasin

g
 the eco

n
o

m
ic p

ro
sp

erity of the city and reg
io

n

 

 

18 

 

Footfall in Coventry city centre was 
significantly up in 2021/22 (April 2021-
March 2022) compared to the previous 12-
month period: 94.7% higher. The fact that it 
has increased by a lot is unsurprising given 
that it was so restricted due to national 
lockdowns during 2020/21; footfall was 
63.0% down in 2020/21 compared to the 
previous year. 

Footfall levels across the whole of 2021/22 
have not recovered to the 2019/20 levels 
however, the annual total is 29% lower and 
Coventry city centre footfall remains lower 
than pre-pandemic levels. The most 
significant recovery in footfall occurred at 
the beginning of this financial year, during 
April to June 2021 as restrictions eased, in 
they improved to 36% below the 2019 
levels. Since then, increases in footfall have 
been gradual, up to Q4 (Jan-Mar2022) 
when they were 27% below 2019 levels. 

Looking at the data for separate locations 
across Coventry city centre, all points of 
measurement experienced large falls in 
2020/21, to a similar extent - and all 
similarly have seen large increases in 
2021/22 to similar degrees. All measured 
areas remained below levels in 2019/20, 
there are no parts of the city centre that 
depart significantly from the trend. 

Comparing footfall trends in Coventry city 
centre to data metrics for other towns and 
cities gives a mixed picture. The main 
comparison reported here shows that, for a 
selection of places where Coventry’s data 
providers also measure, the average 
increase in 2021/22 was 59.5%, less than 
the increase of 94.7% measured in 
Coventry. 

However, data analysed by the Centre for 
Cities shows a less positive picture for 
Coventry. It compares all cities in the UK, 
analysing footfall levels at the end of March 
2022 and how they compared to pre 
lockdown levels in February 2020. It shows 
that, although all cities experience a sharp 
drop-in activity because of restrictions, 
some are seeing it return faster than others. 

It shows, as our data does, that footfall in 
Coventry city centre remains lower than pre-
lockdown levels, but also that Coventry 
ranks amongst the worst 10 cities in the UK 
in this respect, most cities have higher 
relative footfall levels compared to pre 
lockdown levels. 

HMV’s 100th birthday concert 

On 25 August 2021 HMV’s 100th Birthday 
concert with Ed Sheeran was held at the 
HMV Empire, Coventry. The music retailer 
HMV, in partnership with Coventry City 
Council, also hosted a free livestream of the 
Centenary Concert at Assembly Festival 
Garden as part of Coventry’s City of Culture 
Celebrations. 

Godiva Festival 2021 

In September thousands enjoyed a fantastic 
weekend in Coventry as the Godiva Festival 
returned. Tens of thousands of people 
flocked to the city’s War Memorial Park to 
enjoy a weekend full of fantastic live music 
and family fun in September 2021. 

Over 54,000 tickets were sold for the 
festival, which was making its return after 
being sadly cancelled in 2020 due to the 
COVID-19 pandemic. 

 

Once again, the festival offered something 
for all ages, with performances from big 
names like Craig David presents TS5, Sister 
Sledge, Supergrass, Sophie Ellis-Bextor 
and Fun-Lovin’ Criminals, to name but a 
few, within a diverse music programme. 

Page 32



In
creasin

g
 the eco

n
o

m
ic p

ro
sp

erity of the city and reg
io

n
 

 

19 

Festival attendees also enjoyed plenty of 
fun in the Family Field, with brand new 
activities like the Actual Reality Arcade and 
established attractions like the mini petting 
farm, birds of prey and funfair all proving 
popular with families. 

Festival of Running 2021 

On 31 October 2021, the Festival of 
Running finally hit the streets of Coventry, 
with over 4,500 runners signed up to take 
on the Half Marathon or 5K routes around 
the UK’s City of Culture. 

The 5K route saw runners take in the 
historic Council House, Lady Godiva statue, 
and some of the city’s historic buildings - 
while the Half Marathon shared a similar 
starting route before heading out into leafy 
countryside lanes up to the highest point 
before five miles of downhill to the glorious 
Cathedral finish. 

Runners raised tens of thousands of pounds 
for local, national, and international 
charities, including the event’s six partner 
charities: Myton Hospice, Penny Appeal, 
Coventry Mind, South Warwickshire NHS 
Foundation Trust, University Hospital and 
Zoe’s Place Baby Hospice. 

The event was operated by Coventry 
University Students’ Union (CUSU). CUSU’s 
Sport and Wellbeing Officer, Elvis Zeiluks, 
said: “The Festival of Running is an 
incredible way to get all the city involved in 
celebrating and enjoying fitness. I am very 
proud that the festival raises so much 
money and awareness for local charities 
and is inclusive for everyone. We have 
some people who have never run before 
through to elite runners taking part, and a 
2.5k wheelchair race too. 

Birmingham Commonwealth 
Games 2022 

As an official Commonwealth Games 2022 
host, this summer Coventry will be hosting 
Judo, Wrestling and Rugby Sevens; as well 
as an athlete’s village at the University of 
Warwick. 

 

International Children’s 
Games 2022 

The International Children’s Games will take 
place between 11-16 August 2022. 

 

The eight sports taking place are; Athletics, 
Basketball 3 on 3, Basketball, Climbing, 
Football 6-a-side, Swimming, Table Tennis 
and Tennis. 

A range of venues around Coventry are set 
to host the event including The Alan Higgs 
Centre, University of Warwick, Coventry 
University and Broadgate in the city centre. 

Page 33



In
creasin

g
 the eco

n
o

m
ic p

ro
sp

erity of the city and reg
io

n

 

 

20 

 

Coventry City Council and MLS, as event 
organisers, are working to deliver the event 
with city partners including CV Life, the 
University of Warwick, and Coventry 
University. 

 

Rugby League World Cup 
2022 

In November 2021 organisers of the Rugby 
League World Cup announced the 
rescheduled dates, including a match in 
Coventry at the Coventry Building Society 
Arena on 21 October 2022. 

 

National Collections Centre 

The Council is working to creating a new 
shared collections centre to house the local 
heritage collections alongside national 
collections, with aligned research and 
conservation facilities in the heart of 
Coventry. 

A collaboration between the City Council, 
Arts Council England, Arts Council 
Collection, the British Council, Culture 
Coventry Trust, and Coventry University. 
This work will create a new, shared, national 
Collections Centre that will provide state of 
the arts facilities for the management and 
research of national and local collections, 
along with associated educational and 
learning opportunities. 

 

Helping people into 
work 

Employment rate 

The employment rate amongst working age 
residents of Coventry is estimated at 71.2% 
in 2021; this is unchanged from last year. 
Coventry is following the regional and 
national recent trends; but Coventry’s 
employment rate remains lower than the 
regional and national average. Coventry’s 
lower rate is partly explained by the fact that 
Coventry is home to a high number of 
economically inactive full-time students, 
reflecting the success of the two growing 
local universities. The employment rate in 
2021 remains lower than it was before the 
COVID-19 pandemic, the estimated rate 
was 73.0% in 2019 - up to 2019 the rate had 
been on a gradually increasing trend since 
2015. 

Page 34



In
creasin

g
 the eco

n
o

m
ic p

ro
sp

erity of the city and reg
io

n
 

 

21 

Unemployment rate 

The unemployment rate reduced slightly 
from 5.9% in Jan – Dec 2020 to 5.5% in Jan 
– Dec 2021. At 5.5% the Coventry 
unemployment rate is higher than both the 
5.0% average for the West Midland Region 
and the 4.5% average for England for Jan – 
Dec 2021. 

Personalised job support 

The Coventry Job Shop is continuing to 
increase its presence in communities whilst 
maintaining a strong central hub in the City 
Centre. The Coventry Job Shop now have 
regular Job Coach support in the Wood 
End, Henley, Manor Farm and Deedmore 
area; plus, Canley, Tile Hill, and Willenhall. 

Since March 2021, the shop has achieved: 

50.0

55.0

60.0

65.0

70.0

75.0

80.0

85.0

90.0

95.0

100.0

%

Series1 Series2Coventry England

Emp

Employment rate amongst Coventry residents compared to England 

0.0

2.0

4.0

6.0

8.0

10.0

12.0

14.0

% of 
economically

active 
working

age
(16-64)

residents

Series1 Series2

Unemployment rate amongst Coventry residents compared to England

Coventry England

Page 35



In
creasin

g
 the eco

n
o

m
ic p

ro
sp

erity of the city and reg
io

n

 

 

22 

 

• 2,926 new customers registrations; 

• 890 supported in to work; 

• 115 New Employers engaged for 
support with recruitment of local 
people 

• 9,847 visits to the Job Shop face-to-
face both booked through the online 
booking portal and drop-ins following 
COVID-19 restrictions. 

New jobs supported 

In 2020/21, with the support of the Job Shop 
and the Kickstart Scheme, 184 jobs were 
created – of which 152 were through the 
Kickstart scheme. This was an increase 
from the 34 jobs created in 2020/21. 

Actively supporting 
residents to improve 
their skills and secure 
better jobs 

Qualifications 

The total number of Coventry residents who 
have qualifications up to higher education 
level or higher (NVQ level 4 is equivalent to 
a foundation degree) has continued to 
increase, reaching an estimated 101,100 in 
2021. This amounts to an estimated 40% of 
all working age residents of Coventry. 

More important than just the total number 
increasing, the proportion with higher level 
qualifications has been increasing as a 
trend and continued to increase in 2021, 
although a moderate annual increase 
compared to larger increases a few years 
ago. The total number of residents qualified 
at level 4 or above has doubled in 10 years 
and increased from 30% to 40% between 
2015 and 2021. 

The improving trend in residents being 
highly qualified is a positive influence on the 
local economy, for jobs and productivity, 
and the prosperity of Coventry people. It is, 
perhaps, both indicative of improving 
productivity of local businesses and 
residents increasing having higher paid 
jobs, as well as a factor that will support 
these trends in the future. 

However, the data shows that Coventry’s 
improvement has not given the city a 
competitive advantage in a significant way; 
similar increasing trends are seen across 
England overall, across the West Midlands 
region and in other places like Coventry. 

The University of Warwick and Coventry 
University, in particular their increasing size 
and success, are local assets that will 
support the skills and qualifications of 
Coventry residents. 

In the past, research has shown that 
graduate retention in Coventry from these 
institutions has been modest compared to 
some other places; updated research into 
current levels of retention, how many 
graduates of the two universities stay to live 
and work in Coventry, and the factors 
behind this, may be useful. 

 

At the other end of the spectrum, 7.6% of 
Coventry residents (19,100) have no 
qualifications; compared to 7.7% for West 
Midlands and 6.4% for England. 7.6% with 
no qualifications in Coventry is an increase 
from 7.1% in 2020. 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Residents qualified to level 4 or above

Coventry WMR England

Page 36



In
creasin

g
 the eco

n
o

m
ic p

ro
sp

erity of the city and reg
io

n
 

 

23 

 

Training for accredited 
qualifications 

Through Skills 4 Growth, a European Social 
Funded programme, a total of 108 small and 
medium-sized enterprises have been 
supported leading to accredited training and 
qualifications for 363 employees meeting 
their identified skills needs. 

Apprenticeship Levy 

The Apprenticeship Levy, imposed on larger 
businesses including the Council, helps 
businesses support their employees’ 
professional development. This year the 
Council has continued to build on its 
success in supporting smaller, non-levy 
paying businesses with apprenticeship 
training costs. 

We are continuing to prioritise Coventry 
businesses and residents, particularly 
apprentices from disadvantaged and under-
represented backgrounds. The funds 
transferred for 2020/21 totalled £74,734 and 
this increased 31% to £97,976 for 2021/22. 
The total pledged as of the end of 2021/22 
has reached £364,617, supporting 76 
apprentices at 21 businesses in the city. 

Supporting young people into 
work 

The Coventry youth hub provides a fully 
integrated service for all young people who 
are aged 16-29 and claiming Universal 
Credit, enabling job shop advisors and 
jobcentre plus staff together to support 
Coventry’s young people to re-engage with 
training and the labour market. This year the 
Coventry youth hub has supported 1,559 
young people, with 201 moving into work 
both part-time and full-time. 

Job placements through 
Kickstart 

The Department of Work and Pensions 
Kickstart Scheme ran from September 2020 
to April 2022. There were delays in 
implementing the scheme, but the Job Shop 
got involved at the earliest possible 
opportunity to act as an official ‘Gateway’ 
organisation to support local businesses 
through the Kickstart application process. 

Employers were supported to create six-
month paid job placements for 16-24 years 
old on Universal Credit who are at risk of 
long-term unemployment, with the Job Shop 
providing additional ‘wraparound’ support to 
ensure the placements were successful. As 
a Gateway, the Job Shop supported 100 
employers to create over 300 vacancies. 
152 of these were secured by Job Shop 
customers with over 80% of these being 
retained by their employers after the six-
month Kickstart period ended. 

Destinations of school 
leavers 16+ 

These official statistics show the percentage 
of school pupils continuing to a “sustained 
education, apprenticeship or employment 
destination” after completing year 11. To be 
counted in a destination, young people must 
have “sustained participation” for a six-

40%

59%

77%

85%

7%

8%

Level 4+

Level 3+

Level 2+

Level 1+

Other qualificatons

No Qualifications

Qualifications in Coventry 2021 (% aged 16-64)

Page 37



In
creasin

g
 the eco

n
o

m
ic p

ro
sp

erity of the city and reg
io

n

 

 

24 

 

month period in the destination year. This 
includes attending for the first two terms of 
the academic year (October 2019 to March 
2020) at one or more education providers; 
spending five of the six months in 
employment; or a combination of the two. 

A sustained apprenticeship is recorded 
when six months’ continuous participation is 
recorded at any point in the destination year 
(between August 2019 and July 2020). The 
latest figure available is for 2019/20 with 
Coventry at 93% - which was 1% point 
below both national and West Midlands 
results. 

Young people not in 
education, employment, or 
training 

The number of young people aged 16 and 
17 years old who were not in education, 
employment of training (or whose status in 
unknown) is another statistic that monitors 
the destinations of young people after 
secondary school, often shortened to 
‘NEETs’. This data gives slightly more 
recent data, for 2021, and allows us to 
compare further back in time.  

The data suggests 340 young people aged 
16-17 in Coventry were not in education, 
employment, or training (NEET). This is 
around 4.4% of 16–17-year-olds in the city. 
This is an improvement on the last four 
years’ performance and an all-time low. 
Coventry’s rate remains below (better than) 
both the West Midlands regional rate and 
the England rate. 

Working with partners 
to ensure the 
continued provision of 
high-quality affordable 
housing throughout the 
city 
The Council have continued to make 
progress against the Housing & 
Homelessness Strategy 2019-24 with 
partners, including improving the use of 
existing homes under the empty dwellings 
initiative and working with private sector 
landlords under the “Let’s Rent” scheme, 
whereby the Council provides guarantees 
for making rent payments and supports the 
vetting of prospective tenants. 

The Council also introduced an improved 
Homefinder system in September 2021, to 
make applying, searching, and bidding for 
social / affordable housing easier for 
residents.

6.0% 6.0%

5.5% 5.5% 5.5%

7.3%

6.4%

5.3% 5.3%
5.7%

6.8%

5.4% 5.4%
5.0%

4.4%

0.0%

1.0%

2.0%

3.0%

4.0%

5.0%

6.0%

7.0%

8.0%

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

England Total WMR Total Coventry Total

NEET

2.8% NEET

2.6% NEET

2.3%

NEET

2.7% NEET

2.4%

NEET

3.5%

NEET

2.6%

NEET

3.3%

NEET

2.7%
NEET

2.3%

NEET

3.0%

Not

known

2.7%

Not

known

2.8%

Not

known

2.1%

Not

known

3.2%

NEET

3.1%

Not

known

4.6% Not

known

3.7%
Not

known

3.2%

Not

known

4.0%

Not

known

1.9%

Not

known

2.9%

NEET

2.4%

Not

known

2.9%

Not

known

2.1%

Not

known

2.8%

Not

known

3.0%
Not

known

2.0%

NEET

2.8% NEET

2.7%

Page 38



In
creasin

g
 the eco

n
o

m
ic p

ro
sp

erity of the city and reg
io

n
 

 

25 

Increasing the economic prosperity of the city and 
region metrics 
New metrics are highlighted in yellow, and metrics that will be removed next year are highlighted in grey. 

Metric Previous Current Comparators Progress Target Status 

Regional gross domestic 
product (pound per head) 

£30,168 (2019 
revised) 

£28,699 (2020 
provisional) 

West Midlands Region 
£26,281 (2020 provisional), 

England £32,866 (2020 
provisional) 

 

To increase 
 

City centre footfall (year-on-
year % change) 

-63.0% (2020/21 
revised) 

+94.7% (2021/22) 
N/A (No regional data), UK 

index +59.5% (2021/22) 
 

To increase 
 

Visitor trips 10,030,000 (2019) 4,028,000 (2020) 
N/A (No data), England N/A 

(No data) 
 

To increase 
 

Resident employment rate 
(proxy for new jobs) 

71.2% (Jan-Dec 
2020 revised) 

71.2% (Jan-Dec 
2021) 

West Midlands Region 
73.6% (Jan-Dec 2021), 

England 75.1% (Jan-Dec 
2021) 

 

To increase 
 

Unemployment (model-based)  
5.9% (Jan-Dec 

2020)  
5.5% (Jan-Dec 

2021) 

West Midlands Region 
5.0% (Jan-Dec 2021), 

England 4.5% (Jan-Dec 
2021) 

 

To decrease 
 

16-17-year-olds not in 
education, employment, or 

training (NEET) including not 
knowns 

5.0% (NEET 3.0%, 
Not known 2.0%) 

(2020) 

4.4% (NEET 2.3 %, 
Not known 2.1%) 

(2021) 

West Midlands Region 
5.7% (NEET 2.6%, Not 
Known 3.1%) (2021), 

England 5.5% (NEET 2.8%, 
Not Known 2.7%) (2021) 

 

Below 
(better than) 

national 
average 

 

Destination of school leavers 
aged 16+ 

Not available – new 
metric 

93% (2019/2020) 
West Midlands Region 94% 
(2019/2020), England 94% 

(2019/20)  

Above or 
equal to 
national 
average 

 

Destination of school leavers 
aged 18 after reaching the end 

of 16 to 18 study 

Not available – new 
metric 

81% (2019/20) England 81% (2019/20)  

Above or 
equal to 
national 
average 

 

New jobs created with the 
support of the Job Shop and 

Kickstart Scheme 
34 2020/21 

184 (152 Kickstart) 
(2021/22) 

N/A 
 

50 
 

Apprenticeship levy transferred 
to support non-levy paying 

firms in Coventry 

£74,734 (2020/21 
transferred) 

£97,976 (2021/22 
transferred) 

£364,617 total 
pledge to end 

2021/22 

N/A  To increase  

Active enterprises (number and 
rate per 10,000) 

330 (10,120) (2020 
revised) 

333 (10,120) 
(2021) 

WMCA 394, Warwickshire 
581, 2021  

To increase 
 

       

Page 39



In
creasin

g
 the eco

n
o

m
ic p

ro
sp

erity of the city and reg
io

n

 

 

26 

 

Metric Previous Current Comparators Progress Target Status 

Change in Council Tax Base 
(change from 2009 base) 
(proxy for number of new 

houses in the city) 

110.28 (2020/21) 97.40 (2021/22) 
WMCA 92.76 2021/22, 

England 101.46 2021/22  
To increase 

 

Business rates tax base 
(change from 2002 base) 

138.70 (2019/20)  137.83 (2020/21) 
WMCA 124.98 (2020/21), 
England 159.61 (2020/21) 

 

To increase 
 

Residents qualified to level 4 or 
above (working age population) 

39% (Jan-Dec 
2020 revised)  

40% (Jan-Dec 
2021) 

West Midlands Region 39% 
(Jan-Dec 2021), England 

43% (Jan-Dec 2021)  

To increase 
 

Median annual pay (all 
employee types) of residents 

£24,645 (2020 
revised) – not 
adjusted for 

inflation 

£25,795 (2021 
provisional) – not 

adjusted for 
inflation 

West Midlands Region 
£25,000 (2021 provisional), 

England £26,192 (2021 
provisional) – not adjusted 

for inflation 

 

To increase 
 

Median annual pay (full-time 
employees) of residents 

£29,589 (2020 
revised) 

£30,763 (2021 
provisional) 

West Midlands Region 
£29,799 (2021 provisional), 

England £31,490 (2021 
provisional) 

 
To increase 

 

Gross disposable household 
income per head 

£15,225 (2018) 
£15,350 (2019 

provisional) 

West Midlands Region 
18,350 (2019 provisional), 

England £21978 (2019 
provisional 

 

To increase 
 

Total amount of Council Tax in 
an area and number of 

properties 

£162.4m (148,002 
properties) 

(31/03/2021) 

£176.8m (148,825 
properties) 

(31/03/2022l) 
N/A 

 

To increase 
 

Properties in higher Council 
Tax bands (C to H) 

29.58% (43,772) 
(31/03/2021) 

29.58% (44,019) 
(31/03/2022) 

WMCA 35.7% (2020), 
England 56.2% (2020) 

 

To increase 
 

 

Page 40



 

Improving 

outcomes and 

tackling 

inequalities within 

our communities

  

Page 41



Im
p

ro
vin

g
 o

u
tco

m
es and tacklin

g
 in

eq
u

alities w
ithin our co

m
m

u
n

ities

 

 

28 

 

Effectively delivering 
the essential services 
that matter most to our 
communities 
Tackling inequalities is a key priority, as just 
under 15% of our neighbourhoods are 
amongst some of England’s 10% most 
deprived according to the latest (2019) 
English indices of multiple deprivation. 

Cleaner streets, supported by 
action against fly-tipping 

The effect of COVID-19 and the various 
lockdowns led to many more fly-tipping 
incidents being reported, notably in 2020/21 
when it hit a peak of 10,727. There were 
rises across the city as residents cleared out 
their garages, houses and gardens whilst 
confined to their homes. Enforcement 
activity also increased during this period 
with 6,346 actions carried out eclipsing the 
previous year. 

This trend carried on into 2021/22 however 
to a much lesser extent with 8,473 recorded 
incidents. The amount of enforcement 
actions increased again over this period 
surpassing the previous year once again 
with 6,402 actions taken. 

As 2021/22 progressed there was an 
improvement with reductions in fly-tipping, 
despite an all-out bin strike from early 
January to the end of the year. 

 

The impact of COVID-19 really disrupted the 
work of the street enforcement team as they 
were unable to undertake patrols and carry 
out much of our face-to-face enforcement 
work. 

The street enforcement team will continue to 
target those streets that continue to be 
blighted by fly-tipping and will continue 
through education and enforcement to crack 
down of fly-tipping and littering incidents, as 
well as carrying out a range of other 
environmental functions. 

Strengthening our 
Marmot city approach, 
encouraging healthy 
lifestyles and provide 
quality healthcare 

Life expectancy 

The life expectancy at birth of the average 
person in Coventry is 78.6 years for males 
and 82.3 years for females. However, this 
masks significant health inequalities across 
the city. 

Coventry bus route number 7 runs between 
Brownshill Green in the north-west and Bell 
Green in the north-east of the city. It crosses 
some of the city’s most affluent areas, as 
well as some of the most deprived areas. 

3335

3925

4841

6346

6402

4704

6922

6955

10727

8473

2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

Fly-tipping incidents reported Investigation actions completed

Page 42



Im
p

ro
vin

g
 o

u
tco

m
es and tacklin

g
 in

eq
u

alities w
ithin our co

m
m

u
n

ities
 

 

29 

The Coventry map graphic sets out the bus 
route (in black) across the city; and the base 
map sets out the neighbourhoods (known as 

MSOAs (Middle Layer Super Output Area)) 
of Coventry. The colours represent the 
average life expectancy at birth of residents 

Brownshill 

Green

 81.11

 83.89

Allesley

Post Office

 80.96

 87.67

Norton 

Grange

 81.08

 82.31

Moseley 

Avenue

 81.35

 85.28

Pool 

Meadow

 76.24

 81.65

Gosford 

Green

 75.39

 83.79

Barras 

Green

 74.95

 79.78

Sewall 

Highway

 80.29

 85.40
Blackberry 

Lane

 79.33

 84.00

Meriden 

Street

 74.60

 78.90

The White 

Horse

 74.33

 77.54

Riley 

Square

 74.46

 79.42

Low High

Page 43



Im
p

ro
vin

g
 o

u
tco

m
es and tacklin

g
 in

eq
u

alities w
ithin our co

m
m

u
n

ities

 

 

30 

 

in each of Coventry’s neighbourhood areas 
(MSOA) in 2015-2019. 

On the ‘bus stop’ graphic, the height of each 
bus stop represents the average life 
expectancy at birth of residents in each area 
in 2015-2019. Life expectancy serves as a 
useful summary measure of mortality, as it 
quantifies the differences between areas in 
the years of life lived; and therefore, 
illustrates the stark health inequalities 
across the city. 

Healthy life expectancy 

Healthy life expectancy indicates the 
average number of years a person could 
expected to live in good health. For 2018-20 
Coventry’s healthy life expectancy at birth 
for females indicates 64.0 years. It has 
remained stable and compares favourably to 
both regional and England averages. For 
2018-20 Coventry’s healthy life expectancy 
at birth for males indicates 61.1 years. It has 
fallen more significantly during 2018-20 and 
is below both regional and England 
averages. 

Overweight and obese 
children 

 

COVID-19 has had an impact on the data 
collection for the National Child 
Measurement Programme and 2019/20 
(which saw has seen an increase in the rate 
of overweight or obese children aged 10-11 
in the city, a 2.3% increase to 40.6%) 
remains the most current available data. 
The National Child Measurement 
Programme has been reinstated in 2021/22. 

The Council is working with school nurses 
and health visitors to support children and 
families around healthy eating, being active 
and wellbeing; including supporting healthy 
behaviours alongside the buggy workout 
programme for new mums. 

During COVID-19, services were adapted, 
including running live activity and fitness 
sessions over Zoom; working with schools 
to provide activities and online sessions; 
and, when restrictions were relaxed, outdoor 
face-to-face sessions in-line with 
government guidance. 

Coventry’s Family Health and Lifestyle 

service is participating in a study with 

Newcastle University to test a series of 

different interventions with parents following 

on from a child’s participation in the national 

child management programme. This study is 

due to end in 2023. 

10,000 get active at this 
year’s Sports Fest 

The free, six-day event in August 2021 
provided for all abilities, ages and was 
focused on getting people active and 
encouraging them to try a new activity in a 
safe environment. The event saw sports and 
activities from Coventry Dynamite Cheer, 
Positive Youth Foundation, British Cycling, 
Midland Mencap, Coventry Wheelchair 
Basketball Academy, Tribe Cheer and more. 

The Birmingham 2022 Commonwealth 
Games team also attended the event, with a 
day full of activities and a visit from the 
mascot, Perry. Coventry’s Chelsie Giles, an 
Olympic Bronze medallist for the Women’s -
52kg Judo in Tokyo 2020, also attended the 
event to meet residents of the city and enjoy 
the Birmingham 2022 Takeover Day. 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20

Coventry WMR England

Year 6 prevalence of overweight (including obesity)

Page 44



Im
p

ro
vin

g
 o

u
tco

m
es and tacklin

g
 in

eq
u

alities w
ithin our co

m
m

u
n

ities
 

 

31 

A food resilient city where no 
one goes hungry 

The Coventry Food Network is a food 
partnership that brings together several 
public, private, voluntary and community 
sectors partners to address food poverty 
and its causes in Coventry by taking a city-
wide collaborative and strategic approach 
towards a unified Coventry Food Network 
and Strategy. 

The network has been working closely with 
Coventry City Council and partners, to 
create and deliver a system of emergency 
food provision because of the COVID-19 
pandemic. Some of the initiatives that have 

evolved from this partnership are: 

• Established 15 social 
supermarkets/grub hubs throughout 
the city to provide nutritional food and 
support to those residents in greatest 
need. 

• Supported the delivery of the COVID-
19 Winter Grant Scheme by providing 
emergency food provision to 
vulnerable residents who needed 
additional support with 
accessing/affording food 

• Supported the delivery and 
developed a model to support those 
who were clinically extremely 
vulnerable (Shielding) re: food and 
basic support 

• Procured food and distributed food 
parcels to children eligible for free 
school meals provision during school 
holidays 

• Developing a citywide Sustainable 
Food Strategy which focuses on the 
links between the long-term 
sustainable prevention of food 
poverty, the promotion of public 
health and the reduction of growing 
health inequalities. 

• The Network is in the process of 
registering as a Charitable 
Incorporated Organisation. 

 

Social supermarkets/grub hubs offer 
discounted food parcels, typically about £20 
worth of food for a cost of a £4 membership 
per week. Residents do not need a 
foodbank voucher to access them, but they 
may have some criteria to ensure they are 
helping those who need it most. 

 

At present, Coventry has around 15 social 
supermarkets / grub hubs, and 17 food 
banks / emergency food points. 

Page 45



Im
p

ro
vin

g
 o

u
tco

m
es and tacklin

g
 in

eq
u

alities w
ithin our co

m
m

u
n

ities

 

 

32 

 

Tackling inequalities 
through a collaborative 
approach 

Improving how we work with 
residents and communities 

 

The Council’s engagement platform “Let’s 
Talk Coventry” has enabled us over the last 
three years to generate better connectivity 
and collaboration amongst local 
communities. This has been particularly 
useful in gaining insights from the public 
throughout the COVID-19 pandemic and 
subsequent lockdowns. Hopefully now we 
have built a good relationship with local 
people this will continue to be shown via 
increased response rates to our numerous 
engagement opportunities. 

The platform has improved our online 
engagement offer using a variety of 
deliberative tools as well as surveys. The 
graph below shows the continued increase 
in engagement with the platform. 

 

Engaging local communities 

In summer 2020, the Council launched a 
community-led engagement response to 
communications and messaging around 
COVID-19 that has seen the development of 

more than 320 community messengers 
across the city. They share information in 
the way they know works for their 
communities and neighbourhoods and 
provide feedback and intelligence about how 
it really feels on the ground in these 
extraordinary times. 

Community messengers were recruited 
through existing faith, voluntary and 
community networks in the city. A series of 
webinars were held to provide initial advice 
and training and focus groups were held 
with young people to help develop specific 
messaging. A weekly news update is 
emailed to messengers to share with their 
networks. The email update is long and 
detailed, messengers pick and choose the 
items they would like to share. 

One messenger creates a weekly email for 

her neighbours and rewrites the information 

we provide into her style. Weekly webinars 

provide a forum for sharing and discussions 

for the messengers. The network provides 

valuable feedback about what is really going 

on in neighbourhoods. They tell us about the 

latest false news and disinformation that is 

being shared on social media on things like 

the vaccine. It helps us make sure we are 

myth-busting when we need to. 

Community and 
neighbourhood integration 

A community and neighbourhood integration 
initiative is underway in Bell Green, Wood 
End & Henley Green area of the city. The 
council is working together with partners, 
through trusted relationships to understand 
and address the priorities and needs of 
residents and the community. This includes, 
enabling accessibility through co-locating 
services in community venues to provide 
immediate person-centred support, 
partnering with local school leaders to better 
enable them to help families and young 
people in need, supporting our most 
vulnerable residents through specialist 
advice in local grub hubs and targeted 

Page 46



Im
p

ro
vin

g
 o

u
tco

m
es and tacklin

g
 in

eq
u

alities w
ithin our co

m
m

u
n

ities
 

 

33 

health and wellbeing initiatives. This will 
inform further locality approaches in other 
parts of the city in the coming months, 
where our focus will be on how we ensure 
that the work that we do, in partnership with 
others, has the most positive impact 
possible on the lives of local people. 

Engagement with local 
stakeholder groups 

The Council supports local community 
representatives to run several local 
community-based stakeholder groups based 
in the key neighbourhoods of the city. These 
were used virtually during the pandemic and 
now face to face to engage with community 
groups and organisations. These will also be 
consulted with for the new One Coventry 
Plan. 

Monthly newsletter 

As an additional engagement method, the 
Community Resilience team have created a 
monthly newsletter which goes to 
community groups and organisations across 
the city this includes very small community 
groups right up to those running large 
community centres. The newsletter was set 
up shortly after the end of COVID-19 
pandemic-related lockdowns to continue 
getting valuable information out to groups in 
the sector but also to manage the many 
requests from service areas within the 
council and partners to get key information 
about service to the sector once services 
had resumed. 

Meeting the public sector 
equality duty 

The Council has continued at pace to deliver 
on its obligations under the Public Sector 
Equality Duty and advance the growth of its 
diversity and inclusion agenda more 
broadly. This year has seen the launch of a 
new set of Equality Objectives for 2022-
2025; five objectives have been set which 
outline how the Council will meet 

requirements to eliminate unlawful 
discrimination, advance equality of 
opportunity and foster good relations 
between people of different groups. 

The Council has also continued to assess 
the potential impact of key decisions through 
its Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) 
process. 26 EIAs were completed between 
April 2021 and March 2022. Another key 
highlight of the past year has been the 
Council’s success in applying for £120k of 
government funding to install 3 new 
Changing Places Toilets in the city. 

Health and Wellbeing Awards 

24 awards were given at the Treehouse 
Assembly Festival Gardens venue in 
September 2021 in celebration of everything 
great that happens in health and wellbeing 
services across the city. The event 
celebrated Coventry’s unsung community 
heroes, especially throughout the 
challenging times of COVID-19. 

Tackling violence, 
including domestic 
abuse and sexual 
violence 

Increase in crime 

Total recorded crime in Coventry increased 
in April 2021 to March 2022 to 40,059 from 
31,309 in 2019/20. This is a 27.9% increase; 
a much larger increase than in 2020/21 
which was only 9.5%. In 2021/22 Coventry 
ranked third highest out of the eight policing 
areas, accounting for 11.1% of the West 
Midlands force’s total. November 2021 saw 
the highest number of offences recorded in 
Coventry for the year. 

Whilst these statistics might appear to be 
alarming, the increase in crime is not 
unexpected. The previous comparative year 

Page 47



Im
p

ro
vin

g
 o

u
tco

m
es and tacklin

g
 in

eq
u

alities w
ithin our co

m
m

u
n

ities

 

 

34 

 

consisted of substantial periods of time 
where our citizens were in ‘lockdown’ due to 
the COVID-19 epidemic and therefore 
comparing one year against the other is not 
helpful. Coventry’s population is roughly 
11% of the total West Midlands force area 
population and therefore the levels of crime 
are in line with this figure. 

The top three offences for Coventry in 
2021/22 were Common Assault and Battery 
(accounted for 11.6%), Assault Occasioning 
Actual Bodily Harm (ABH) (6.0%) and 
Harassment (5.5%). 

Reduction in youth offending 

Coventry has seen more of a marked 
decline compared to the current family 
group and national comparators. This has 
given opportunity for the Service to have an 
earlier offer to children at risk of entering the 
youth justice system. The first-time entrants 
to youth justice system (rate per 100,000 
young people aged 10-17) has reduced to 
112 in 2021/22 from 230 in 2020/21. 

Hate crime 

Police in Coventry take hate crime very 
seriously and respond to and investigate all 
reported hate crime in the city.  

West Midland Police (WMP) recorded 1,112 
hate crimes in Coventry in 2021/22. 

 

Coventry ranked fourth out of eight West 
Midlands policing areas for hate crime, 
accounting for 9.2% of hate crime across 
the force – which is low considering 
Coventry’s population represents 11% of the 
West Midlands population. 

We have continued to deliver training 
courses to raise awareness of how to report 
incidents of Hate Crime. Targeted 
merchandise with details of how to report 
have been distributed across the city. Staff 
in family hubs have been trained on 
reporting incidents and supporting victims in 
making a report. We are currently running 
awareness training around the “Stand by 
ME” (standbyme.uk) campaign that gives 
anyone the tools to identify discrimination & 
how to support victims if they witness an 
incident. 

Domestic abuse 

The number of domestic abuse (crime and 
non-crime) reports increased from 10,203 in 
2020/21 to 10,957 in 2021/22. The split of 
crimes and non-crimes was 7,303 and 3,654 
respectively. The most common offences 
titles were Common Assault and Battery, 
Assault Occasioning Actual Bodily Harm 
and Malicious Communications. 

Female victims accounted for most domestic 
abuse crimes and non-crimes (75.0%). 
However, male victims have seen a 
proportionately higher increase compared to 
the previous year (18.4% increase for 
males, 5.2% increase for females). 

 

Additional support for victims 
of domestic abuse and their 
children 

The Council is making progress in 
developing and embedding the provisions 
required for supporting fleeing victims of 
domestic violence and their children across 
all functions to comply with its obligations 
under the Domestic Abuse Act 2021, which 
became law on 30th April 2021. 

8

31

76

142

855

Sex/gender

Religion/belief

Disability

Sexual orientation

Race/ethnicity

Hate Crime Offences Recorded 2021/22 

Females  

8121 *

*

10622 domestic abuse offences reported 2021/22

Males  

2501

335 Gender not recorded

Page 48

https://standbyme.uk/


Im
p

ro
vin

g
 o

u
tco

m
es and tacklin

g
 in

eq
u

alities w
ithin our co

m
m

u
n

ities
 

 

35 

This has included: Appointing a multi-
agency Domestic Abuse Local Partnership 
Board to advise the Council; Assessing the 
capacity required to fully support victims of 
domestic violence and their children in safe 
accommodation and developing, delivering, 
and evaluating a local strategy. 

Affordable access to 
heating, and insulation 

Increase in the cost of living 

A cost-of-living crisis started in the second 
half of 2021 and is rapidly accelerating in 
first half of 2022. While this is primarily 
around energy, fuel for vehicles, and food - 
it is severely affecting all areas of spending 
and debt levels. Other areas of concern are 
mental and physical health, the cost of 
physical access to services (private and 
public transportation), and the cost of digital 
access to services. Therefore, there are 
ongoing risks to access to; energy, warmth, 
food, benefits, healthcare, and other 
services. 

Coventry City Council have created a web 
page that pulls together all of the existing 
support that is available to the people of 
Coventry, particularly in regards to the cost-
of-living crisis: 
https://www.coventry.gov.uk/cost-living-
wellbeing-support 

 

Housing energy performance 

Energy Performance Certificates (EPC) are 
the standard measure of UK property 

efficiency. EPCs have been lodged for 729 
homes as new dwellings in Fiscal Year (FY) 
2021/22. Of these 6 (<1%) were Efficiency 
Band A, 494 (68%) were Band B, 191 (26%) 
were Band C, and 38 (5%) were Band D. 
Zero were Band E, F or G. This is below the 
long-term average of 75% Band B and 21% 
Band C for the efficiency of new build 
properties in Coventry.  

For all EPCs in Coventry in FY 2021/22 50% 
were Band D, and 48% were Band C. 
Properties that were built before 1967, and 
are band D on their current EPC, still 
account for 46,314 (52%) of the 88,806 total 
properties with an EPC in Coventry. 15,268 
of these are listed as rentals, and of those 
5,321 are listed as social housing. Social 
housing has more Band C (6,735) than 
Band D (5,321). Private rentals have similar 
numbers of Band C and Band D. Homes 
marketed for sale in Coventry are still 
predominately Band D. However, the ratio of 
Band D to Band C is improving. It was 1.6 
for EPCs lodged in FY 2021/22 (1,735 vs. 
1,071), whereas the long-term ratio is 2.3 
(19,507 vs. 8,432). 

Improving the energy 
efficiency of housing 

For EPCs in FY 2021/22 that are listed as 
being related to energy efficiency upgrade 
schemes; 678 EPCs in 21/22 were for the 
Energy Company Obligation (ECO) bringing 
the total to 7,508, 22 were for a Green Deal 
assessment bringing the total to 4,965, 14 
were for a Renewable Heat Incentive (RHI) 
application bringing the total to 69, and 1 
was for a Feed in Tariff (FiT) application 
bringing the total to 1,617. These schemes 
were largely inactive nationally in FY 
2021/22, nonetheless there is significant 
support in place for FY 2022/23. The 
Council-run domestic retrofit schemes have 
increased EPC ratings by 1-2 bands on 
average. 

The Foleshill area of Coventry, alongside 
Elmdon in Solihull, has been selected as 
one of the place-based local areas to share 
the first £2.8M (circa 50% for Foleshill) of 

Page 49

https://www.coventry.gov.uk/cost-living-wellbeing-support
https://www.coventry.gov.uk/cost-living-wellbeing-support


Im
p

ro
vin

g
 o

u
tco

m
es and tacklin

g
 in

eq
u

alities w
ithin our co

m
m

u
n

ities

 

 

36 

 

the £19M Sustainable Warmth Competition 
Funding awarded to West Midlands 
Combined Authority. The aim of the funding 
is to reduce domestic energy use by 
installing the latest reducing fuel technology 
free of charge to eligible households who 
apply. 150 homes in Foleshill will benefit 
from the scheme in this round, with plans to 
roll out the scheme to a further 1,700 homes 
across the combined authority in the future.  

This initiative is running alongside the 
Council’s own domestic retrofit projects 
which can support low income/low EPC 
rated household applicants across the city. 
This is with the aim to reduce residents’ fuel 
bills, as part of the Government’s ambitious 
plans to support as many homes as possible 
to have an Energy Performance Rating of A 
- C.  

The major grants for efficiency upgrades 
that are in place now are include in the 
below table. 

 

Funding Scheme Grant 
Allocation 

Homes 
Supported 

Timescales 

Government Funding 

Local Authority 
Delivery (LAD) 
Phase 2 

Up to 
£1.8M 

Up to 125  2021 –  
Sep 22 

Sustainable 
Warmth 
Competition 
(Coventry 
allocation)  

£2.18M At least 
200  

March 22 – 
March 23 

Sustainable 
Warmth 
Competition 
(WMCA 
Allocation 

£2.8M 
(Circa. 
50% in 
Foleshill, 
Coventry)  

300 (Circa. 
50% in 
Foleshill, 
Coventry) 

March 22 – 
March 23 

Social Housing 
Decarbonisation 
Fund 

£1M 95 Feb 22 – 
March 23 

 

Coventry City Council, in partnership with 
local charity Act on Energy also run a 
Keeping Coventry Warm scheme. This 
scheme provides a variety of support for 

Coventry residents, including referrals for 
these and other grants towards insulation, 
solar photovoltaic panels, and other energy 
efficiency measures. They can also support 
with bill advice, tariff switching, and onwards 
referrals to other agencies if appropriate. 
Homeowners interested in free energy 
efficiency measures can contact Act on 
Energy, who will check eligibility, and 
provide support through the application 
process. 

 

Protecting children and 
supporting families to 
give children the best 
start in life 

Reduction in the number of 
looked after children 

Provisional data shows at the end of March 
2022, 731 children were looked after by 
Coventry City Council. This is a reduction of 
16 children from March 2021, when there 
were 747 looked after children. Expressed 
as a rate per 10,000 children, Coventry’s 
rate has reduced from 92.0 March 2021 to 
90.5 in March 2022. 

 

91

0

20

40

60

80

100

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

Looked After Children Rate per 10,000  

Coventry SN England

Page 50



Im
p

ro
vin

g
 o

u
tco

m
es and tacklin

g
 in

eq
u

alities w
ithin our co

m
m

u
n

ities
 

 

37 

The number of looked after children has 
reduced but remains above comparators. 
The Family Valued Strengthening Families 
change programme is designed to spread 
restorative practice across children’s 
services. A key element is the focus on 
Strengthening Families through Relationship 
Based Practice. There is a desire to 
empower and enable families to find 
solutions, to build their own networks and for 
families to make changes, build resilience 
and most of all to remain together. The 
Family Valued project has an aim to reduce 
the numbers of looked after children and 
improve the quality of children’s lives in 
enabling them to live safely outside of care. 

Repeat referrals to children’s 
social care 

Repeat referrals to children’s social care 
remains similar to last year, however it 
remains slightly higher than comparators. It 
reduced from 25.0% in 2020/21 to 24.7% in 
2021/22. The Family Valued project has an 
aim to reduce the numbers of repeat 
referrals and improve the quality of support 
that children in city receive. 

 

Looked after children 
previously looked after 

The percentage of new looked after children 
who were previously looked after has 
increased in 2021/22 to 9.6% from 5.6%. 
During the year there has been dip-samples 
to understand the reason numbers have 
increased. The result was that discharges 
home from the first period of care were 
found to be appropriate and there were no 

alternatives to coming back into care. The 
Family Valued project has an aim to reduce 
the numbers of looked after children 
returning and to improve the quality of 
children’s lives in enabling them to live 
safely outside of care. 

 

Integrated early help, 
education partnership 
work and implementing 
the Family Valued 
programme 

Children living in low-income 
families 

The provisional data for 2020/21 shows that 
in Coventry 22.9% of children aged under 
16 are living in relative low-income families, 
that is 16,737 children. This is more than the 
England average of 18.5% but lower than 
the West Midland Region average of 24.6% 
for 2020/21. 

Relative low income is defined as a family 
whose equivalised income is below 60 per 
cent of contemporary median income. Gross 
income measure is Before Housing Costs 
(BHC) and includes contributions from 
earnings, state support and pensions. 

24.7%
24%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 March
2022

Repeat referrals to children's social care

Coventry SN England Target

9.6%

5.6%

7.7%8.1%8.0%

6.2%

March
2022

March
2021

March
2020

March
2019

March
2018

March
2017

Percentage of new looked after children 
who were previously looked after

Page 51



Im
p

ro
vin

g
 o

u
tco

m
es and tacklin

g
 in

eq
u

alities w
ithin our co

m
m

u
n

ities

 

 

38 

 

Low-income family tracker 
project 

Coventry is working on a pilot initiative 
where we identify and contact to low-income 
families to understand whether they could 
be supported to apply for additional benefits 
and to prevent homelessness. This work will 
target support to people who need it most 
now and uncover hidden pockets of poverty; 
and identify families who are struggling and 
who may never have engaged with the 
Council and its partners before. 

Supporting families through 
receiving the right help at the 
right time 

Coventry’s early help partnership's shared 
vision is: 'Coventry: where children, young 
people and families matter'. The partnership 
aims to reach children, young people, and 
families when the need first emerges, and 
intervene when there will be the greatest 
impact. 

Training has been delivered to a range of 
partners to complete early help 
assessments – which has led to an 138% 
increase in the completion of assessments 
by partner agencies – enabling families to 
access help when they need it. 

The early help directory continues to be 
developed signposting professionals and 
families to sources of support across the 
city. 

Improving the 
educational attainment 
of our children and 
young people 

School performance 

Nine out of ten Coventry pupil attend a 
school that is rated good or outstanding by 
Ofsted, the schools’ inspectorate. In March 
2022, 93.1% of pupils attend a 
good/outstanding primary school in 
Coventry and the figure for secondary is 
85.5%. Both figures are not only better than 
our ‘statistical neighbours’ but is better than 
the national average. However, there has 
been a drop for special schools, at 86.3%, 
down from 100% in March 2020. 

Pupil attainment 

In January 2021 and in response to the 
coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, the 
government announced that it was no longer 
fair for many exams and assessments to go 
ahead as planned. It was confirmed that 
students taking GCSE, AS and A levels 
regulated by Ofqual would be awarded 
grades based on an assessment by their 
teachers. Teachers used a range of 
evidence to make a judgement about the 
grade at which their students performed, 
focusing on the content that students had 
been taught. 

Each school and college were required to 
put in place an internal quality assurance 
process, which was defined in their centre 
policy. Centres’ internal quality assurance 
included internal standardisation of marking 
and grading judgements. As part of the 
external quality assurance, exam boards 
reviewed the centre policies for all centres. 
Exam boards also requested evidence from 
all centres and checked the evidence used 
to support teacher grades for some students 
in a sample of centres. 

Page 52



Im
p

ro
vin

g
 o

u
tco

m
es and tacklin

g
 in

eq
u

alities w
ithin our co

m
m

u
n

ities
 

 

39 

In both 2020 and 2021 grades awarded via 
teacher and lecturer assessment were 
significantly higher, overall, than they had 
been in 2019.  

For England, regulator Ofqual has 
announced that grading in 2022 will again 
be more generous than it was pre-
pandemic, but that grades are expected to 
fall at a mid-point between those in 2019 
and 2021. In future, the plan is for grades to 
revert to a more normal distribution. As 
such, 2022 has been described as a 
‘transition year’. 

Key stage 4 

The following table shows Coventry’s GCSE 
grades for 2021 in comparison to our 
statistical neighbours and England. 

 

Key stage 5 

 

The following table sets out the three key 
metrics at key stage 5: 

 

Supporting children 
most affected by 
disruption to their 
learning 

School readiness 

Prior to the Covid 19 pandemic, school 
readiness was an area of focus in Coventry. 
The data taken from 2019 indicated that 
overall, 69% of Coventry children were 
‘school ready’ compared to a national 
average of 71%. 

There were concerns that the pandemic has 
disrupted school readiness, with feedback 
from Coventry schools and early years 
providers suggesting that some children 
were often more comfortable in learning on 
their own or with a very small number of 
other children; overwhelmed by a busy 
classroom, preferring quieter, more solitary 
activities; evidence of building unhealthy 
attachments with adults; language delay and 
confidence in communication; and with 
gross and fine motor skills that were less 
well developed, and balance and 
coordination were below levels expected. 

To address these issues, Coventry is part of 
a pre-reception ‘Building on Success 
programme’ to provide high quality training 
to early years staff to support children who 
were at risk of falling behind at a critical 
stage of their development and have 
nominated early years providers who meet 
the criteria. 

68.2

46.5

67

46.2

72.2

51.9

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Grade 4 or above Grade 5 or above

%

Percentage of pupils achieving grade 4 or above in 
English and Maths GCSE

Coventry Statistical Neighbours England

A levels

39.00 points

Tech levels

27.94 points

General applied

33.07 points

Coventry SN England

A Level
Average Points 

Score
39.00 38.81 46.60

Average Grade C+ C+ B

Tech Level
Average Points 

Score
27.94 31.37 31.76

Average Grade Pass + Merit Merit

General Applied
Average Points 

Score
33.07 32.09 32.82

Average Grade Merit Merit Merit

Page 53

https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/ofquals-approach-to-grading-exams-and-assessments-in-summer-2022-and-autumn-2021
https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/ofquals-approach-to-grading-exams-and-assessments-in-summer-2022-and-autumn-2021
https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/ofquals-approach-to-grading-exams-and-assessments-in-summer-2022-and-autumn-2021


Im
p

ro
vin

g
 o

u
tco

m
es and tacklin

g
 in

eq
u

alities w
ithin our co

m
m

u
n

ities

 

 

40 

 

Holiday and food 
programmes 

During the pandemic, free school meal 
provision, holiday activities, and the food 
pilot programme were extended for children 
aged 5 to 16 during the Easter, Summer, 
and Christmas of 2021. This combined 
enriching activities with a hot or cold meal, 
nutrition awareness and signposting, 
enabling learning to continue over the 
holiday period. 

Expansion of free school 
meal uptake 

Free school meal numbers in the city have 
increased from 11,683 (21.6% of pupil 
population) at the start of the pandemic in 
March 2020 to 12,683 (23.4% of pupil 
population) in January 2021, and to 13,272 
(24.3% of pupil population) by December 
2021. This compared with 20.8% of pupils 
nationally. 

Enabling people to live 
independently 

People receiving support 
from adult social care and 
their carers 

The number of people we support with 
ongoing care and support is a good indicator 
of how successful we are at enabling people 
to be independent. As of 31 March 2022, 
there were 3,531 people receiving long-term 
ongoing support from adult social care (a 
rate of 1,183 per 100,000). 

The number and rate have stayed at a 
similar level over the last 5 years and 
remains lower than comparators. 

Satisfaction with adult social 
care 

In 2021/22 62% of people surveyed who use 
services with their care and support were 
satisfied, a small reduction from 63.1% from 
the last survey in 2019/20 but not a 
significant change or downward trend. 

 

Adult social care has an equal responsibility 
for anyone providing unpaid care within the 
city. Anyone providing necessary care to 
another adult is entitled to a carer’s 
assessment. 

The survey regarding the overall satisfaction 
of carers with social services was also 
delayed a due to the COVID-19 pandemic. 
Performance reduced from 40.1% in 
2018/19 to 32% in 2021/22. 

Comparator information is due to be 
released in October 2022 and we will be 
able to see whether the reduction is a trend 
across the different comparator groups and 
nationally. During the covid-19 pandemic the 
council implemented ‘enhanced support for 
carers’ without which the decline may have 
been larger for this group who were severely 
impacted by the pandemic. 

 

62.0%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2021/22

Coventry CIPFA England

Overall satisfaction of people who use services with their care

32.0%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

2016/17 2018/19 2021/22

Overall satisfaction of carers with social 
services 

Coventry CIPFA England

Overall satisfaction of carers with social services

Page 54



Im
p

ro
vin

g
 o

u
tco

m
es and tacklin

g
 in

eq
u

alities w
ithin our co

m
m

u
n

ities
 

 

41 

Short-term reablement 
services 

In 2021/22 the outcomes met short-term 
reablement services increased to 67% from 
60% in 2020/21. This increase in 
performance is evidence that we are being 
more effective in enabling people to remain 
at home as an outcome of this support and 
strong performance against this indicator is 
critical to assurance of the effectiveness of 
our promoting independence approach. 
However, Coventry’s outcomes met is still 
lower than the England average of 74.9% 
but higher than the CIPFA nearest 
neighbours 2021/22 average of 62.1%. 

Impact of adult social care 
services on self-reported 
quality of life 

Despite not being a statutory requirement a 
survey of users of Adult Social Care was 
conducted in past year. 

• 93% of people who are vulnerable felt 
safe and protected from harm 

• 93% of people had a positive of 
experience of care services and 
support 

• 92% of people with care and support 
needs had enhanced quality of life 

These results are very positive and 
demonstrate that despite the significant 
challenges of the pandemic adult social care 
continued to provide effective support to 
many people. 

The work of Adult Social Care continues to 
be supported by a Stakeholder Group, who 
meet regularly to discuss any updates and 
influence the improvements of the service. 
As a result of the pandemic, these meetings 
have happened virtually via Microsoft 
Teams. 

Safeguarding adults 

Protecting adults to live in safety, free from 
abuse and neglect is a core duty of Adult 

Social Care. The rate of safeguarding 
concerns reported between 2020/21 and 
2021/22 has increased from 493 to 872 
which indicates an increased awareness of 
know how to report abuse. Our internal audit 
process indicates that we are effectively 
addressing many concerns without the need 
for an enquiry or investigation. Supporting 
people who are homeless 

Statutory homelessness 

The service accepted more households as 
statutorily homeless under a Main Duty in 
2021/22 than in the previous year. The 
number of households accepted under a 
main duty increased from 722 in 2020/21 
(5.0 households per 1000) to 800 in 2021/22 
(5.5 households per 1000). 

More homelessness cases 
prevented and relieved 

Despite a 14% increase in case demand on 
homelessness prevention and relief services 
in 2021/2022 compared with 2020/2021, the 
Council delivered the same percentage 
successful case outcomes, obtaining 
secured accommodation for 1167 
households, compared with 1083 in the 
previous year and against an annual target 
of 1150. 

Due to the increase and projected further 
increase in demand for homelessness 
support in 2022/2023, the Council has 
invested in additional frontline resources to 
support more residents facing 
homelessness issues and have revised and 
uplifted contracts for delivering additional 
support with providers, including The 
Salvation Army, St Basils, and P3 Charity, 
for households which are not eligible for a 
statutory homeless duty. 

Page 55



Im
p

ro
vin

g
 o

u
tco

m
es and tacklin

g
 in

eq
u

alities w
ithin our co

m
m

u
n

ities

 

 

42 

 

Meeting the needs of more 
complex cases facing 
homelessness issues 

Launched as a pilot initiative in April 2021, 
the aim of the Vulnerable Persons Forum 
(VPF) is to provide a more joined up multi-
service intervention to support more 
complex cases who are homeless or at risk 
of becoming homeless. The forum is 
facilitated by a Council employed VPF co-
ordinator and made up from a range of 
specialist service providers supporting 
Coventry residents who can refer cases in 
and meet monthly to review them. 

The average duration of the intervention is 
three months and normally involves around 
five different specialist services supporting 
households facing homelessness along with 
mental health, drug misuse, domestic 
abuse, physical health, or disability issues, 
or in contact with the criminal justice system. 

In the first fourteen months of operations, 98 
clients have been supported by the initiative, 
with 88% of discharged cases being 
reported as having an improved status for 
securing accommodation following the 
intervention. Learning from the pilot is being 
used to inform improved provision for the 
most complex and hardest to resolve 
homelessness cases. 

The Council, as part of their Housing and 
Homelessness Strategy, has also been 
increasing the provision of fully supported 
temporary accommodation for single 
homeless people with complex issues to 
help them break the cycle of living in 
unsettled accommodation or rough seeping, 
including the new recently purchased and 
refurbished property on Holyhead Road, 
which is housing and supporting up to 26 
single homeless people at any one time. 

 

Since the start of the pandemic more than 
300 homeless people who were moved into 
emergency shelter have been moved into 
more suitable accommodation including 
flats, house shares and live-in support 
schemes. 

Supporting people 
experiencing mental ill-
health 

Supporting children and 
young people 

During the COVID-19 pandemic, mental 
health services had to rapidly adapt and 
embrace virtual and remote working to 
ensure support continued to be provided to 
local people. Although services had 
continued to provide a virtual support offer 
during COVID-19, not all children and young 
people had the equipment, support, or 
confidence to access support through a 
digital platform. This had meant some 
children and young people had become 
more isolated, which was likely to have a 
negative impact on their emotional 
wellbeing. Estimates suggest that around 
9,000 children and young people in 
Coventry could now have a probable mental 
disorder. 

Kooth, an online virtual support app for 
emotional wellbeing and mental health, for 
children and young people aged 11 to 25 
went live on 12 April 2021; and as part of 

Page 56



Im
p

ro
vin

g
 o

u
tco

m
es and tacklin

g
 in

eq
u

alities w
ithin our co

m
m

u
n

ities
 

 

43 

recovery planning activities, additional 
investment had been made by the Coventry 
and Warwickshire Clinical Commissioning 
Group for the recurrent growth of the 
children and young people eating disorder 
service and the children and young people 
crisis team. 

Transforming mental health 
services 

The NHS Mental Health Implementation 
Plan 2019/20–2023/24 sets out a plan for 
transforming mental health services. To 
support the transformation of local mental 
health services across the Coventry and 
Warwickshire footprint, the Council has 
entered into a partnership agreement with 
the Coventry and Warwickshire Clinical 
Commissioning Group and Coventry and 
Warwickshire Partnership Trust, whereby 
NHS organisations and local authorities 
contribute an agreed level of resource into a 
single pot (the pooled budget) that would 
then be used to drive the integration and 
improvement of existing services. 

Integrating our refugee 
and migrant 
communities 
The Council provides support, advice, and 
guidance to migrant communities in the city 
to help them along their integration journey. 
In the past year the city has been pivotal in 
the UK’s response to both the Afghan and 
Ukrainian humanitarian crises, supporting 
people taking up the Hong Kong British 
National (Overseas) immigration route as 
well as continuing to respond to the UK 
Refugee Resettlement Scheme offering safe 
and equal routes to the most vulnerable 
refugees across the world. 

Key activities in 2021-22 included: 

• integration support including English 
for speakers of other languages; 

• employment, education, and training; 

• access to education; 

• civic orientation - first city to 
undertake children’s citizenship 
ceremony; 

• IT; digital literacy; co-ordination of 
local organisations working with 
newly arrived and migrant 
communities; response to policy and 
consultation; developing integration 
strategy for the city; dedicated 
support to women from newly arrived 
communities; support asylum 
seekers; 

 

Page 57



Im
p

ro
vin

g
 o

u
tco

m
es and tacklin

g
 in

eq
u

alities w
ithin our co

m
m

u
n

ities

 

 

44 

 

 

Migration in numbers 

• Number of refugees resettled (April 
2021-March 2022): 238 

• Hong Kong British National 
(Overseas): 97 

• Number of clients into employment: 
125 

• Number of asylum seekers in 
temporary accommodation: 550 

• Dispersed asylum seekers in the city: 
1,500 

• Asylum seekers supported: 570 

• Young people not in education, 
employment or training aged 16-29 
supported: 65 

• Community Champions recruited to 
support uptake of vaccinations 
amongst communities not reached by 
existing services: 1,800 individuals 
vaccinated because of the scheme 

Improving outcomes and tackling inequalities 
within our communities metrics 
New metrics are highlighted in yellow, and metrics that will be removed next year are highlighted in grey. 

Metric Previous Current Comparators Progress Target Status 

Crime (rate per 1,000 
population number of crimes) 

84.3 (31,309 
crimes, +9.5%) 

(2020/21) 

 105.6 (40,059 
crimes, +27.9%) 

(2021/22) 

Wolverhampton 131.4 
(34,745 crimes) (2021/22), 

Birmingham 137.7 
(157,076) (2021/22, 

England N/A (No data) 

 

To 
decrease 

 

First time entrants to youth 
justice system (rate per 

100,000 young people aged 10-
17) 

230 (2020/21) 112 (38) (2021/22) 

Family group average of 
199 (Oct 20- Sep 21), 

England 154 (Oct 20 – Sep 
21) 

 

To 
decrease 

 

Repeat victims of domestic 
abuse reported 

29.6% (2020/21)  34.7% (2021/22) 

Wolverhampton 34.4% 
(2021/22), Birmingham 

34.0% (2021/22, England 
N/A (No data) 

 

To 
decrease 

 

Good level of development at 
age 5 

69.0% (2019)  N/A (2021) N/A 
 

Better than 
statistical 

neighbours  

Pupils attending a 
good/outstanding primary 

school 
91% (March 2020) 

93.1% (March 
2022) 

Statistical neighbours 
89.8%, England 91.3% 

(Mar 2022)  

≥ National 
Average 

 

Page 58



Im
p

ro
vin

g
 o

u
tco

m
es and tacklin

g
 in

eq
u

alities w
ithin our co

m
m

u
n

ities
 

 

45 

Metric Previous Current Comparators Progress Target Status 

Pupils attending a 
good/outstanding secondary 

school 
71% (March 2020) 

 85.5% (March 
2022) 

Statistical neighbours 
78.9% (March 2022), 

England 85.2% (March 
2022) 

 

≥ National 
Average 

 

Pupils attending a 
good/outstanding special 

school 
100% (March 2020) 

86.3% (March 
2022) 

Statistical neighbours 
92.4% (March 2022), 

England 94.7% (March 
2022) 

 

≥ National 
Average 

 

Key stage 2 expected standard 
in reading, writing & maths 

62% (2019) N/A (2021) N/A 
 

Better than 
SN 

 

Key stage 4: attainment 8 47.2 (2019) N/A (2021) N/A 
 

Better than 
SN 

 

Key stage 4: progress 8 -0.12 (2019) N/A (2021) N/A 
 

Better than 
SN 

 

Overweight or obesity among 
children in Year 6 

40.6% (39.1%-
42.2%) (2019/20) 

N/A (2020/21) N/A 
 

To 
decrease 

 

Looked after children (rate per 
10,000 population under 18 & 

number) 

92.0 (747 children) 
(March 2021) 

90.5 (731 children) 
(March 2022 
provisional) 

Statistical neighbours 87.7 
(2020/21), 67.0 England 

(2020/21)  

None set 
 

Repeat referrals to children’s 
social care 

25.0% (March 
2021)  

24.7% (March 2022 
provisional) 

Statistical neighbours 
23.2% (2020/21), England 

22.7% (2020/21)  

<24% 
 

Percentage of new looked after 
children who were previously 

looked after (rolling 12 months) 
5.6% (March 2021)  

9.6% (March 2022 
provisional) 

N/A 
 

<6% 
 

Homelessness cases 
prevented and relieved 

1083 (2020/21) 1167 (2021/22) N/A 
 

>1150 
 

Overall satisfaction of people 
who use services with their 

care support 
63.1% (2019/20)  62.0% (2021/22) 

CIPFA 63.2% (2019/20), 
England 64.2% (2019/20) 

 

To increase 
 

Overall satisfaction of carers 
with social services 

40.1% (2018/19) 32.0% (2021/22) 
CIPFA 38.5% (2018/19), 
England 38.6% (2018/19) 

 

To increase 
 

Adult social care service users 
receiving long term on-going 

support 

3404 people (1,167 
per 100,000) (31 

March 2021) 

3531 people (1183 
per 100,000) (31 

March 2022) 

CIPFA 1580 per 100,000 
population (2020/21), 1386 

England per 100,000 
(2020/21) 

 

 <1238 
 

Adult social care outcomes met 
through short-term reablement 

service 
60% (2020/21) 67% (2021/22) 

CIPFA 62.1% (2020/21), 
England 74.9% (2020/21 

 

To increase  
 

Percentage and (number) of 
children (aged under 16) living 
in Relative low-income families 

24.7% (17,841) 
(2019/20) 

22.9% (16,737) 
(2020/21 

provisional)  

West Midlands Region 24.6 
(2020/21 provisional), 
England 18.5 (2020/21 

provisional)  
 

To 
decrease  

Page 59



Im
p

ro
vin

g
 o

u
tco

m
es and tacklin

g
 in

eq
u

alities w
ithin our co

m
m

u
n

ities

 

 

46 

 

Metric Previous Current Comparators Progress Target Status 

Proportion of neighbourhoods 
amongst the 10% most 

deprived in England (measure 
of deprivation) 

Not available – new 
metric 

14.4% (28 out of 
195 Coventry 

LSOAs) (2019) 

WMCA 26.4% (2019), 
England 10% (2019)  

Below 
(better than) 

national 
average 

 

Male healthy life expectancy at 
birth 

61.9 (60.1-63.7) 
(2017-19) 

61.1 (59.0-63.1) 
(2018-20) 

West Midlands Region 61.9 
(2018-20), England 63.1 

(2018-20)  

To increase 
 

Female healthy life expectancy 
at birth 

64.2 (62.4-65.9) 
(2017-19) 

64.0 (61.8-66.1) 
(2018-20) 

West Midlands Region 62.6 
(2018-20), England 63.9 

(2018-20)  

To increase 
 

Fly-tips reported in the city 10,727 (2020/21) 8,473 (2021/22) N/A 
 

To reduce 
 

Drug offences and drug 
markers recorded  

774 drug offences 
and 1,507 drug 

markers (2020/21) 

1,142 drug offences 
and 2,721 drug 

markers (2021/22) 
N/A  None set 

 

Domestic abuse (crime and 
non-crime) offences known to 

the police  

10,203 (+36.7%) 
(2020/21) 

(10,957 +7.4%) 
(2021/22) 

Wolverhampton 10,532 
(2021/22), Birmingham 

41,226 (2021/22), England 
N/A (No data) 

 
None set 

 

Primary school pupils with 
permanent exclusions 

0.01% (March 
2020) 

0.03% (March 
2022) 

N/A 
 

≥ National 
Average  

Secondary school pupils with 
permanent exclusions 

0.04% (March 
2020) 

0.16% (March 
2022) 

N/A 
 

≥ National 
Average  

Key stage 4: standard pass 
(grades 9-4) in English and 

maths 
66.9% (2020) 68.2% (2021) 

Statistical neighbours 
67.0% (2021), England 

72.2% (2021)  

Better than 
statistical 

neighbours  

Key stage 4: good pass (grades 
9-5) in English and maths 

44.8% (2020) 46.5% (2021) 
Statistical neighbours 

46.2% (2021), England 
51.9% (2021)  

Better than 
statistical 

neighbours  

Key Stage 5 level 3 average 
point score A level entry 

36.75 (Grade C+) 
(2020) 

39.00 (Grade C+) 
(2021) 

Statistical neighbours 38.81 
(Grade C+) (2021), England 

41.6 (Grade B) (2021)  

Better than 
statistical 

neighbours  

Key Stage 5 level 3 average 
point score and grade general 

applied entry 

29.20 (Pass+) 
(2020) 

27.94 (Pass+) 
(2021) 

Statistical neighbours 31.37 
(Merit) (2021), England 

31.76 (Merit) (2021)  

Better than 
statistical 

neighbours  

Key Stage 5 level 3 average 
point score and grade general 

applied entry 
31.44 (Merit) (2020) 33.07 (Merit) (2021) 

Statistical neighbours 32.09 
(Merit) (2021), England 

32.82 (Merit) (2021)  

Better than 
statistical 

neighbours  

Smoking status at time of 
delivery  

10.7% (9.8%-
11.7%) (2019/20) 

9.9% (9.0%-10.9%) 
(2020/21) 

West Midlands Region 
10.6% (2020/21), England 

9.6% (2020/21)  

To 
decrease  

Adults achieving 150 minutes of 
physical activity per week 

61.9% (57.5%-
66.1%) (2019/20) 

59% (48%-78%) 
(2020/21) 

West Midlands Region 63% 
(2020/21), England 66% 

(2020/21)  
To increase 

 

Page 60



Im
p

ro
vin

g
 o

u
tco

m
es and tacklin

g
 in

eq
u

alities w
ithin our co

m
m

u
n

ities
 

 

47 

Metric Previous Current Comparators Progress Target Status 

Hospital admissions caused by 
injuries in children 0-14 (rate 

per 10,000) 

138.2 (945 injuries) 
(2019/20) 

93.3 (645 injuries) 
(2020/21) 

West Midlands Region 77.0 
(2020/21), England 75.7 

(2020/21)  

To 
decrease  

Recorded cases of diabetes as 
recorded on GP practice 

6.8% (2019/20) 7% (2020/210) 
West Midlands Region 8% 

(2020/21/20), England 7.1% 
(2020/21)  

None set 
 

HIV late diagnosis 
54.1% (42.1%-

65.7%) (2017-19) 
46.5% (35.7%-

57.6%) (2018-20) 

West Midlands Region 
45.0% (2018-20), England 

42.4% (2018-20)  

To 
decrease  

Conceptions to girls aged under 
18 (rate per 1,000 girls aged 

15-17) 
25.8 (2019) 19.8 (2020)  

West Midlands Region 15.8 
(2020), England 13.0 

(2020l)  

To 
decrease  

Gap (in the good level of 
development at age 5) between 
the lowest achieving 20% and 

the rest 

38.6% (2019) No data (2021) N/A 
 

Better than 
statistical 

neighbours  

Early help assessments closed 
with all actions complete 

72.5% (March 
2021) 

68.9% (March 2022 
provisional) 

N/A 
 

None set 
 

Households accepted as 
statutory homeless (in priority 

need) 

722 (5.0 per 1,000 
households 

2020/21) 

 800 (5.5 per 1,000 
households 
(2021/22) 

N/A 
 

None set 
 

Adult safeguarding S42 
enquiries (number and rate per 

100,000 population) 

493 (165 per 
100,000) (2020/21) 

 872 (92 per 
100,000) (2021/22 

provisional)  

 West Midlands Region 207 
per 100,000 (age-

standardised) (2020/21), 
England 292 per 100,000 

(age-standardised) 
(2020/210) 

 
None set 

 

Proportion of adult social care 
service users placed in 

regulated adult social care 
services rated as inadequate  

3.7% (31 March 
2021) 

4% (31 March 
2022) 

N/A  ≤4%  

Page 61



Tackling the 

causes and 

consequences of 

climate change

 

  

Page 62



Tacklin
g

 the cau
ses and co

n
seq

u
en

ces of clim
ate ch

an
g

e
 

 

49 

Sustainability and 
climate change 

Tackling the causes and 
consequences of climate 
change 

Coventry, as the 2nd largest city in the West 
Midlands, has an important leadership role 
to play in tackling today’s most pressing 
issue – climate change. The Council 
recognised the importance of this as far 
back as 2008, having been a founding 
signatory of what is now known as the 
Global Covenant of Mayors for Climate & 
Energy. Coventry was also one of the first 
cities, in 2012, to produce a Climate Change 
Strategy. The city’s 2012 strategy set a 
target to reduce carbon dioxide emissions 
by 27.5% by the year 2020. Coventry 
achieved this in 2014 (six years early). A 
new Green Futures Strategy is in 
development, one that ensures ambitious 
goals that embrace the challenges that 
climate change and delivering a sustainable 
future presents with the urgency it requires.  

The Council’s draft new One Coventry Plan 
for 2022-2030 also elevates climate change 
to the Council’s top priorities - alongside the 
city’s prosperity and tackling inequalities. It 
sets out the Council’s relentless focus on 
tackling the causes of climate change and 
mitigating the inevitable consequences of 
this, to ensure the wellbeing of our residents 
and position Coventry as a leader and 
pioneer of the green industrial revolution. 

Independent Coventry 
Climate Change Board 

In November 2021, the Council facilitated 
the development of an independent 
Coventry Climate Change Board to address 
the major challenges of climate change, 

development of a circular economy and loss 
of biodiversity. 

The Board, chaired by Margot James of the 
Warwickshire Manufacturing Group with 
Councillor Jim O’Boyle, consisting of senior 
representatives from major businesses, 
public agencies, charities, and voluntary 
organisations based in the city to work in 
collaboration on developing and 
implementing a strategy and action plan to 
address sustainability and climate change 
issues across the City. 

Both the City Council and the Board have 
adopted the ‘International Council of Local 
Environmental Initiatives’ five Development 
Pathways which address the UN’s 17 
Sustainable Development Goals. 

Five development pathways 

The Council has adopted the International 
Council for Local Environmental Initiatives’ 
(ICLEI) Five Development Pathways: 

Low emissions pathway: renewable 
energy generation; energy from waste; 
retrofitting properties; electrification of 
vehicles; public transport; active travel; 
towards a 15-minute city. 

Circular economy pathway: minimisation 
of waste, and maximising recycling 
participation. 

Nature based pathway: understanding the 
distribution of species and their 
conservation status and promoting 
biodiversity. 

Resilient pathway: addressing key risks 
with the change in climate and a greater 
incidence of extreme weather events such 
as flooding, heatwaves, and droughts. 

Equitable & people centred pathway: 
recognising that the effects of climate 
change and environmental deterioration 
affect communities disproportionately, 
particularly those on lower incomes who are 
most likely to be the first to suffer the 
consequences of climate change. 

Page 63



Tacklin
g

 the cau
ses and co

n
seq

u
en

ces of clim
ate ch

an
g

e

 

 

50 

 

Low emissions 
pathway 

Council’s carbon emissions 

Over the past year, the city’s total carbon 
emissions have slightly increased, primarily 
owing to recovery from the COVID-19 
pandemic. 

  2020/21 2021/22 

2020/21 – 
2021/22 

% Difference 

Scope 1 Total 4,848,903*  4,558,805 -5.98% 

Fleet 3,199,659* 3,042,339 -4.92% 

Buildings 1,649,244 1,516,506 -8.05% 

Scope 2 Total 4,469,925 4,451,270 -0.42% 

Buildings 2,094,285 2,350,349 +12.23% 

Streetlighting 2,375,640 2,100,921 -11.56% 

Scope 1 & 2 
Total 

9,318,828* 9,010,075 -3.31% 

Scope 3 Total 7,173,211 7,486,256 +4.36% 

Business Travel 174,107 319,605 +83.57% 

Buildings 6,640,887 6,801,795 +2.42% 

Scope 1, 2 & 3 
Total 

16,492,039 16,496,331  +0.03% 

*Scope 1 and Fleet for 2020/21 has been slightly adjusted 
(previously 4,689,011 and 3,039,766) upon review 

The carbon emissions are broken down into 
scopes 1, 2 and 3 emissions, the definition 
of which are: 

Scope 1 direct emissions: activities owned 
or controlled by your organisation that 
release emissions straight into the 
atmosphere. Examples: emissions from 
combustion in boilers we own, emissions 
from owned or controlled vehicles. 

Scope 2 energy indirect emissions: 
released into the atmosphere associated 
with the consumption of purchased 
electricity, heat, steam, and cooling. The 
most common type of Scope 2 emission is 
electricity purchased from the National Grid. 

Scope 3 other indirect emissions: those at 
sources which we do not control, and which 
are not classified as scope 2 emissions. 
Examples of scope 3 emissions include 
business travel not owned or controlled by 
the Council (e.g., use of public transport), 
commuting, or use of ‘grey fleet’ 
(employees’ own cars used for fuel 
expenses). 

There is a slight increase in overall carbon 
emissions of around 0.03% but the data 
shows that a significant percentage of this 
increase has come from consumption of 
heat and electricity (Scope 2) and business 
travel (Scope 3), which was to be expected 
with recovery from the pandemic. This is 
because since lockdowns have ended, 
people are traveling for work and meetings 
again and similarly, office buildings are back 
in use. Scope 1 emissions have seen a 
reduction, both in council-owned buildings 
as well as for fleet. The reason for the 
decrease in building emissions is partly 
because of the removal of gas oil 
consumers (such as Whitley Depot Admin 
Block and the COVID-19 test centres at 
Moat Street Leisure Centre) this year, as 
well as the PSDS scheme which has 
introduced more heat pumps, solar panels 
and insulation retrofit. For fleet, a quieter 
gritting season as well as the fuel-crisis 
around October contributed to the fall in 
emissions. 

Carbon disclosure 

The CDP (formerly known as the Carbon 
Disclosure Project) is an internationally 
recognised benchmark that helps 
companies and cities disclose their 
environmental impact.  

Page 64



Tacklin
g

 the cau
ses and co

n
seq

u
en

ces of clim
ate ch

an
g

e
 

 

51 

The Council is currently achieving a “B” 
CDP score; and the One Coventry Plan has 
a target of achieving an “A” score. 

Supporting businesses 

The Coventry & Warwickshire Green 
Business Programme supports the shift 
towards a low carbon economy, delivering a 
cohesive package of support activities to 
small and medium enterprises (SMEs) with 
fewer than 250 employees that facilitate 
economic growth through SMEs developing 
and adopting energy and resource efficiency 
measures, as well as renewable energy. 
Originally launched in 2016, the Programme 
was the first integrated package of business 
support focused on the low carbon agenda 
and reduction of business carbon emissions 
that the Council has delivered, and the first 
such programme in Coventry & 
Warwickshire. 

Coventry City Council provide grants (£1k-
£50k based on an intervention rate up to 
40%), free energy and resource efficiency 
audits and a Green Business Network to 
maximise the energy efficiency and low 
carbon opportunities of SMEs based in 
Coventry and Warwickshire. SMEs engaged 
in the Programme experience a variety of 
benefits, including reduced energy bills, 
maintenance costs, waste disposal costs 
and carbon emissions and increased 
competitiveness, efficiency, and 
improvement to working conditions. Since 
the start of the Programme, we have 
supported over 288 businesses; saved over 
13,595 tonnes CO2 annually; created a 
network of 1,950 members; supported the 
creation of 60 jobs; and paid over £2.78m in 
funding. 

Road network quality 

Better roads reduce wear and tear on tires, 
which is a significant source of air particle 
and microplastic pollution. Better pavements 
and better cycle routes enable low-cost 

physical access through active travel 
options such as walking and cycling. 

The 2021/22 survey shows 98% of A roads 
and B & C roads, as well as 81% of 
unclassified roads, to be in a 
good/acceptable condition. However, this is 
much lower at 46% for footways. The 
condition of cycleways is currently 
measured as forming part of a roadway or a 
footway. 

The Council is working on improving its 
footways – this year’s data has shown a 4% 
decrease – however this is thought to reflect 
increased monitoring of more footway sites: 
national reporting standards only cover high 
hierarchy footways (school, shopping areas 
and main routes) and historically this is all 
we surveyed (on a four-year cycle). We now 
survey 100% of footways over a four-year 
cycle. Most of the network will be covered 
by the end of the 2022/23 survey period. 

Fewer priority potholes 

985 “priority 1” potholes were reported in the 
financial year 2021/22, down from 1,339 in 
2020/21. This is a decrease of 354 over the 
12-month period. This large reduction may 
be down to a milder than average winter 
period. 

From February 2022 potholes in Coventry 
will be repaired and fixed permanently in 
super quick time after Highways Service 
purchased JCB’s revolutionary pothole 
machine, “PotholePro”. The PotholePro can 
repair a pothole in less than eight minutes. 
The Council took part in a trial 
demonstration on Abbey Road, Coventry 
last summer where the machine repaired 
more than 100 m of patches in the road in 
just two hours. A stretch of road that usually 
takes four days to repair. After closely 
monitoring the potential impact on road 
repairs the Council ordered the machine 
and it is now working on city roads. 

Page 65



Tacklin
g

 the cau
ses and co

n
seq

u
en

ces of clim
ate ch

an
g

e

 

 

52 

 

The JCB PotholePro breaks the road and 
cleans the hole, without the need for any  
hand working, so a permanent repair can be 
carried out. 

 

Road treatment programmes 

In 2021/22, 18 miles of carriageway were 
treated, and 50 footway sites were 
improved. This is a reduction from the 65 
footway sites improved in 2020/21 when we 
received additional Department for 
Transport challenge fund monies for 
footway improvements. 

98%

81%

46%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

A roads B &C roads Unclassified roads Footways

Road network quality in Coventry 2017/18 to 2021/22 

Page 66



Tacklin
g

 the cau
ses and co

n
seq

u
en

ces of clim
ate ch

an
g

e
 

 

53 

 

In 2021/22 £4,455,000 was spent from the 
previous DfT challenge fund bid for 
Swanswell Viaduct works. 

Zero carbon vehicles 

The Council has significantly increased the 
number of electric fleet vehicles over the 
past year. By March 2022, we had 72 zero 
carbon vehicles. This an increase from 4 
vehicles in March 2021. 

We have now been successful in replacing 
most of our cars and smaller vans with 
electric alternatives. We have also replaced 
the mayor’s civic car with an electric car and 
will take delivery of our first electric heavy 
goods vehicle, an 18-tonne gully tanker in 
June 2022. 

Charging points 

There are 438 charge points operational as 
of 28 March 2022 in Coventry. The ratings 
of these charge points vary from 3kW to 
22kW. 

20 x 7kW charge points are in Salt Lane car 
park; 16 x 7kW in the Station Multi Storey 
car park; and 402 charge points with varying 
rating (3kW to 22kW) in residential areas 
under the on-street residential charge point 
scheme. 

Circular economy 

Recycling and composting 

The new material recycling facility is on 
track to be operational in the summer of 
2023, with the exterior building nearly 
complete as of spring 2022. This is a £58M 
joint project by 8 local councils including 
Coventry and Nuneaton & Bedworth - 
located alongside the existing Binley waste 
processing site on London Road. This state-
of-the-art facility will significantly expand 
local recycling capacity with the ability to 
process 175,000 tonnes of recycling 
annually by leveraging AI enabled robotic 
sorting equipment. 

55

60

35

67

50

34

16

15

18

18

0 20 40 60 80

2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

Treatment Programmes Completed

Carriageways miles treated Footways Sites improved

28.6%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

Household waste recycled and composted

Coventry WMCA England

Page 67



Tacklin
g

 the cau
ses and co

n
seq

u
en

ces of clim
ate ch

an
g

e

 

 

54 

 

The provisional data for 2021/21 showed 
that the percentage of household waste 
recycled and composted has reduced from 
34.0% in 2020/21 to 28.6%. From the 
beginning of January and for the remainder 
of the final quarter of 2021/22 all household 
waste collections were disrupted. With 
waste collections coming back on line first, 
followed by recycling collections from the 
w/c 21st March and garden waste 
collections from 19th April. This has had an 
impact on the city’s recycling rates.  

 

 

Coventry is participating in the rapidly 
expanding global repair movement, 
alongside the longstanding reduce, reuse 
recycle mantra. The Coventry FabLab, a 
joint project between Coventry University, 
Warwick University, and the Council, has 
long held occasional repair café sessions – 
where people can bring a wide variety of 
possessions for free repair by volunteers. A 
new dedicated repair café organisation 
opened their doors in Hillfields in March 
2022, significantly expanding access to free 
repair services in Coventry. 

Nature and resilience 

A tree for every citizen 

Coventry is particularly blessed with a large 
and extensive tree canopy. In fact, it can be 
argued that this canopy characterises the 
city. The Council is responsible for the 
management of over 45,000 individual trees 
in parks, highways, and other green spaces 
and an estimated 200,000 woodland trees. 

The importance of trees is becoming 
increasingly recognised not least through 
global changes which are and will affect 
everyone on the planet: 

• Trees are important in our efforts to 

combat climate change capturing 

carbon dioxide and releasing oxygen. 

• They help keep the air in our city 

clean by absorbing pollutants. 

• They help keep our streets cool and 

provide shade from ultraviolet light. 

• They hold water on their surface 

helping with flood alleviation. 

• They provide a valuable food and 

habitat resource supporting countless 

birds, animals, and invertebrates. 

• Trees are great for people's health 

and well-being and for bringing 

people together. 

• They also have an economic value, 

provide a potential and sustainable 

source of energy but they also 

increase property values. 

The Council has committed to an ambitious 
plan to plant 360,000 trees for every 
member of Coventry’s population over the 
life of the strategy: a tree for every citizen. 

In 2020, the Council planted 2,100 new 
trees in a small woodland extension. 

In 2021, the Council planted 20,000 new 
trees in several parks to create new 
woodland areas. 

This year, the Council aims to plant over 
20,000 new trees in sites across the city to 
create new woodland. They also aim to 
plant nearly a thousand semi mature trees 
in our streets and parks. 

Urban forestry strategy 

In 2022, Coventry has drafted its first-ever 
Urban Forestry Strategy 2022-2032, which 
seeks to “protect, promote, sustain and 
enhance our urban forest and to recognise 
its contribution towards the character, 

Household waste 

collected reduced 

to 122,265 tonnes 

in 2021/22 from 

131,232 tonnes in 

2020/21 

Page 68



Tacklin
g

 the cau
ses and co

n
seq

u
en

ces of clim
ate ch

an
g

e
 

 

55 

appearance and economy of Coventry for 
the benefit of all those who live, work and 
visit the area.” 

It has also joined the Trees for Streets 
National Street Tree Sponsorship Scheme, 
the national street tree sponsorship scheme 
from the urban tree charity Trees for Cities, 
funded by the government’s Green 
Recovery Challenge Fund and City Bridge 
Trust. This “Tech for Good” project uses 
technology to empower people and makes it 
easy for residents and organisations to get 
involved in greening their communities. 

Equitable and people-
centred 

Air quality 

Poor air quality affect communities 
disproportionately, and targeted support to 
protect communities most likely to be the 
first to suffer the consequences need to be 
prioritised. 

Nitrogen dioxide is measured by small 
plastic tubes with a metal grid at one end 
which is coated with a chemical to absorb 
the nitrogen dioxide. The tubes are replaced 
every 4-5 weeks and sent for analysis at a 
laboratory. Because of their low cost these 
tubes can be used in a wide area, and we 
have about 60 around the city on busy 
roads and junctions. However, the tubes 
only help find annual averages and are only 
+/- 25% accurate. 

 

Air quality across Coventry’s diffusion tube 
sites in 2019 (above) and 2020 (below), 
where green sites have annual mean 
concentration of nitrogen dioxide of less 
than 30 microgram per cubic metre (µg/m3); 
amber sites between 30-39 µg/m3; and red 
sites with 40 µg/m3 or above. Note that 
2020 figures are likely to be an anomaly as 
lockdowns resulted in a marked reduction in 
traffic. 

 

The 40 µg/m3 annual limit for nitrogen 
dioxide was the World Health Organisation’s 
former guideline level for nitrogen dioxide up 
until September 2021. A more stringent 10 
µg/m3 limit has since been introduced with 
the increasing recognition of the hazards of 
air pollution, and this will be reflected in 
future reports. 

Page 69



Tacklin
g

 the cau
ses and co

n
seq

u
en

ces of clim
ate ch

an
g

e

 

 

56 

 

Road casualties 

There were 532 road casualties in Coventry 
in 2021, up from 519 in 2020. This increase 
could be a result of greater road use in 2021 
compared to 2020 which saw road usage 
reduce most likely due to COVID-19 
lockdowns. Annual data for the whole of 
Great Britain from the Department for 
Transport supports this view with total road 
casualties for all road users decreasing by 
25% from 2019 to 2020 and increasing 11% 
from 2020 to 2021. 

While there was an increase in the total 
casualties in Coventry in 2021, this increase 
was not evenly spread across road users. 
The percentage of casualties who were car 
occupants dropped from 61% in 2020 to 
58% in 2021. Conversely, pedestrian and 
cyclist casualties increased from 17% and 
8% to 18% and 12% respectfully. 

This means across Coventry in 2021, there 
were 311 car occupant causalities, 97 
pedestrian causalities, 64 cyclist causalities, 
and 60 other causalities. 

 

318

86

42

311

97

64

0 100 200 300

Car Occupants

Pedestrians

Cyclists

Casualities by Road User 

2020 2021

Page 70



Tacklin
g

 the cau
ses and co

n
seq

u
en

ces of clim
ate ch

an
g

e
 

 

57 

Tackling the causes and consequences of climate 
change metrics 
New metrics are highlighted in yellow, and metrics that will be removed next year are highlighted in grey. 

Metric Previous Current Comparators Progress Target Status 

Carbon dioxide emissions from 
local authority operations  

9,318,828 tonnes 
(2020/21 revised) 

9,010,075 (-3.31%) 
(2021/22 

provisional)  
N/A 

 

To 
decrease 

 

Increased use of renewable 
energy and heat 
decarbonisation 

New metric, no 
data available 

New metric, no 
data available 

N/A  To increase  

Averaged annual nitrogen 
dioxide levels across the city 

No unified measure 
currently developed 

No unified measure 
currently developed 

N/A 
 

Within legal 
limit of 10 

μg/m3  

CDP carbon disclosure score 
New metric, no 
data available 

B N/A 
 

A 
 

Proportion of trips into/out of 
central Coventry made by 

car/taxi/light and heavy goods 
vehicles 

78% (2019) 83% (2021) N/A  
To 

decrease  

Road casualties by road user 
type - car occupant 

61% (318/519) 
(2020 

58% (311/532) 
(2021) 

WMCA 65% (2020), 
England 55% (2020)  

To 
decrease  

Road casualties by road user 
type - pedestrian 

17% (86/519) 
(2020) 

18% (97/532) 
(2021) 

WMCA 17% (2020), 
England 13% (2020)  

To 
decrease  

Road casualties by road user 
type - cyclist 

8% (42/519) (2020) 
12% (64/532) 

(2021) 
WMCA 8% (2020), England 

14% (2020)  
To 

decrease  

Electric vehicle charging points 
in the city 

438 (2020/21) 438 (2021/22) N/A  To increase  

Principal roads (A roads) in a 
good/acceptable condition 

99% (2020/21) 98% (2021/22) N/A  95%  

Non-principal roads (B and C 
roads) in a good/acceptable 

condition 
98% (2020/21) 98% (2021/22) N/A  95%  

Unclassified roads in a 
good/acceptable condition 

81% (2020/21) 81% (2021/22) N/A  80%  

Footways and pavements in a 
good/acceptable condition 

50% (2020/21) 46% (2021/22) N/A  50%  

Page 71



Tacklin
g

 the cau
ses and co

n
seq

u
en

ces of clim
ate ch

an
g

e

 

 

58 

 

Council vehicles that are zero 
carbon emission 

4 (31/03/2021) 72 (31/03/2022) N/A  To increase  

Household waste recycled and 
composted 

34.0% (2020/21l) 
28.6% (2021/22 

provisional) 
WMCA 32.7% (2020/21), 
England 42.3% (2020/21)  To increase  

Biodiversity net gain (measure 
of tree planting and 

biodiversity) 

Metric to be 
defined, no data 

available 

Metric to be 
defined, no data 

available 
N/A  To increase  

Advice on carbon reduction and 
green measures to schools and 

businesses 

Metric to be 
defined, no data 

available 

Metric to be 
defined, no data 

available 
N/A  To increase  

Number of planning policies in 
line with the Global Goals for 

climate action 

Metric to be 
defined, no data 

available 

Metric to be 
defined, no data 

available 
N/A  To increase  

New funding for environmental 
technologies and management 

Metric to be 
defined, no data 

available 

Metric to be 
defined, no data 

available 
N/A  To increase  

Cleanliness levels-Grade A 0% (2020/21) 1% (2021/22) N/A 
 

A&B=100% 
 

Cleanliness levels-Grade B 95% (2020/21) 96% (2021/22) N/A 
 

A&B= 100% 
 

Cleanliness levels-Grade C 4% (2020/21) 3% (2021/22) N/A 
 

=0% 
 

Cleanliness levels-Grade D 1% (2020/21 0% (2021/22) N/A 
 

=0% 
 

Page 72



 

  

Continued 

financial 

sustainability of 

the Council

Page 73



C
o

n
tin

u
ed

 fin
an

cial su
stain

ab
ility of the C

ouncil

 

 

60 

 

Balancing future 
budgets and bridging 
budget gaps 

In-year budget position 

The Council’s outturn position for 2021/22 
has been balanced overall including 
measures taken to strengthen the Council’s 
balance sheet position. 

Medium-term financial 
position 

The Council approved a balanced 2022/23 
Budget in February 2022. Budgets for future 
years currently show a deficit and on this 
measure the Council’s future financial 
position is not sustainable. It is important to 
note however that the Council has a strong 
recent history of balancing its forthcoming 
budgets through prudent and resourceful 
approaches. 

Percentage of Council tax 
collected reduced 

There has been a 0.4 percentage point 
reduction in council tax collection in 2021/22 
as the ongoing impact of the COVID-19 
pandemic creates challenging economic 
conditions. The Council tax collection rate 
reduced to 94.0% in 2021/22 from 94.4% in 
2020/21. 

 

Delivery of savings targets 

The Budget for 2021/22 included £5.5m of 
new or increased service savings. Of these, 
£5m were in the 2021/22 financial year. 

Investment income secured 

In 2021/22, the Council secured total 
investment income of £2.2m; compared to 
£1.1m in 2020/21. 

Financial position 

The business rates rateable value for 
2020/21 is £317m and £315m for 2021/22. 
The total rateable value of Coventry 
businesses has been stable for several 
years and in overall terms the movement 
observed represents a variation of only 
0.6%. 

There are multiple events and trends that 
can affect this figure such as the overall 
health of the local economy and trends 
within different sectors; including those 
which may not have a need for a traditional 
property base. It is difficult to assess the 
impact that the COVID-19 pandemic has 
had on business rates, and it could be 
sometime before any medium-term trends 
are clear. 

This represents the income achieved from 
treasury management investments which 
form part of the task of managing the 
Council’s cash-flow position and loans to 
external organisations. It should be noted 
that the achievement of investment return is 
only a secondary consideration. The key 
objective is to ensure that the Council has 
sufficient cash balances to pay its bills. It is 
unlikely that this achievement will be 
sustained over future years, and neither is 
this a fundamental objective for the service. 

95.9% 95.7% 95.5% 94.4% 94.0%96.1% 96.0% 95.8% 94.7%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22

Council Tax Collected 

Coventry WMCA Target

Page 74



C
o

n
tin

u
ed

 fin
an

cial su
stain

ab
ility of the C

ouncil
 

 

61 

Enhancing our digital 
offer 

Digital inclusion and 
accessibility 

For gigabit broadband coverage, Coventry 
is the top-ranked local authority in the West 
Midlands region and is joint 2nd (with 
Derby) for all the UK. The telecoms 
regulator Ofcom measures access to, and 
the performance of, fixed broadband and 
the mobile network in its Connected Nations 
reports. 

As of January 2022, gigabit availability 
covered 94.8% of residential premises in 
Coventry with 91.9% covered by Full-Fibre, 
up from 91.5% and 75.4% respectfully in 
January 2021. Across the UK, 66% of 
homes can receive gigabit with 33% of 
homes able to receive Full-Fibre. 

Furthermore, 99.5% of residential premises 
have access to decent fixed broadband - 
defined by the UK government as a data 
service that provides fixed download speeds 
of at least 10Mbit/s and upload speeds of at 
least 1Mbit/s. 

According to Ofcom, the number of 
residential properties in Coventry in January 
2022 was 142,295 with 142,132 matched to 
a broadband operator. 

Overall, average download speeds have 
improved from 84.3Mbit/s in June 2020 to 
106.2Mbit/s in May 2021 with speeds for 
those for lines 10<30Mbit/s lines increasing 
from 2.2Mbit/s to 18.3Mbit/s. Meanwhile, 
upload speeds have decreased from 
15.4Mbit/s to 13.8Mbit/s overall and from 
17.7Mbit/s to 2.3Mbit/s. 

Decent broadband can also be accessed 
through the mobile network using 4G 
services. As of January 2022, 86.06% of all 
premises have a reliable signal for 4G 
services while indoors from all four network 

operators (EE, O2, Three & Vodafone), an 
increase from 83.06% in January 2021. 

Digital exclusion 

There is no single measure of digital 
exclusion, however it is possible to measure 
the risk, or likelihood, of digital exclusion 
using the Digital Exclusion Risk Index 
(DERI) tool. DERI, developed by Greater 
Manchester Combined Authority, visualises 
the likelihood of digital exclusion for every 
LSOA (Layer Super Output Area) in 
England and Wales and every data zone in 
Scotland. 

The tool brings together a broad set of 
metrics to create an overall DERI score for 
each area where 0 represents a low risk of 
exclusion and 10 a high risk. The metrics 
included are the proportion of the population 
over 65, Ofcom’s broadband coverage and 
performance, the unemployment rate, the 
index of multiple derivation, qualification 
levels, pension credit claimants, long-term 
health problems or disabilities, and social 
gradings. 

Coventry’s DERI scores range from 6.12 in 
the Manor Farm LSOA area to 1.36 in the 
Gosford and Gulson Roads LSOA. Its 
average score is 3.44. Compared to its local 
peers – West Midlands Combined Authority 
(WMCA) and Coventry and Warwickshire 
Local Enterprise Partnership (CWLEP) – 
Coventry is below each peer’s average of 
3.55 and 3.59 respectfully. This ranks 
Coventry as the 3rd least excluded within the 
CWLEP and 2nd least in WMCA. Further 
afield, the average within England’s 
Metropolitan Districts and the CIPFA local 
authority grouping is 3.53 and 3.51. 

Internet user classification 

In the latest available dataset (2018), 147 of 
195 LSOAs in Coventry are categorised in 
the lower half of the Internet User 
Classification scale (out of 10). The largest 
group by LSOA (57) are classified as 

Page 75



C
o

n
tin

u
ed

 fin
an

cial su
stain

ab
ility of the C

ouncil

 

 

62 

 

passive and uncommitted users; rank 7. 
These users have limited or no interaction 
with the internet and tend to reside outside 
of city centres and close to suburbs or semi-
rural areas. 

The second largest user group is e-
Mainstream (49 LSOAs); rank 6. These 
users exhibit typical internet user 
characteristics in heterogeneous 
neighbourhoods at the periphery of urban 
areas or in transitional neighbourhoods. 

The third largest user group (29 LSOAs) are 
classified as e-Withdrawn; rank 10. These 
are the least engaged users and are in 
deprived urban areas with higher rates of 
unemployment and social housing. They 
also have the lowest rate of internet access 
via a mobile device. 

In comparison, the top three user groups by 
LSOA in Warwickshire are e-Rational 
Utilitarians (rank 5), passive and 
uncommitted users (rank 7), and e-
Mainstream (rank 6). 

Increase in self-service 
transactions 

In 2020/21 there were 352,751 transactions 
completed through self-service channels 
which increased to 415,254 transactions in 
2021/22. This increase relates to the 
introduction of the tip booking process to 
manage visits during the pandemic. There 
has been some additional take up of self-
serve because of the pandemic, though this 
has been limited. The intention in the longer 

term is to revisit our online offerings and 
incorporate user feedback to ensure that 
services are simple and easy to interact 
with. 

Retaining and 
developing talented 
staff 

Workforce engagement 

We are committed to ‘growing our own’ 
talent, and as part of this we have 
introduced a digital self-development 
platform called Coaching Culture. The 
platform aims to help establish a coaching 
culture within the organisation, by improving 
the coaching capability of employees and 
managers, through a series of online 
modules.  

A coaching culture is a place where leaders 
and managers help people to grow, thrive 
and perform. Providing this support will 
improve the coaching capability of our 
workforce and ensure that we are in a better 
position to deliver our ‘One Coventry’ 
ambitions through our One Coventry Plan. 
The wider benefits organisational benefits 
are to performance and culture, ensuring 
the Council:  

• Attracts top talent  

• Develops a growth mindset  

• Increases wellbeing and resilience  

Form Submissions Form Submissions
Book a tip visit 197,307 Book a tip visit 160,999
Report a missed bin 13,043 Go Parks Lockdown Lottery 31,959
Council Tax - Change of address 11,746 Council Tax - Change of address 9,486
Street scene 9,758 Report a missed bin 9,373
Festive fun 2021 bookings 9,647 Street scene 8,861
Register Office - Request a copy certificate 7,680 Register Office - Request a copy certificate 7,856
Adult Social Care - Referral form 7,252 Bin requests 6,256
Bin requests 7,175 Business rates - COVID 19 grant funding 6,126
Customer satisfaction survey 6,475 Customer satisfaction survey 6,045
Customer Service general enquiries 5,632 Adult Social Care - Referral form 5,796

April 2021 – March  2022 April 2020 – March  2021

Page 76



C
o

n
tin

u
ed

 fin
an

cial su
stain

ab
ility of the C

ouncil
 

 

63 

• Builds trust and psychological safety  

• Retains top talent  

• Increases employee engagement  

• Produces higher customer 
satisfaction  

• Increases productivity and financial 
performance  

The Council’s recognition programme has 
been developed with the support of 
employees across the organisation to 
ensure it is reflective of our diverse 
workforce and our One Coventry Values. 
The whole recognition scheme will be made 
up of three sections, with multiple reward 
options at each level:  

• Level 1 - Everyday recognition 

(Cheers from Peers) 

Peer to peer, with everyone being 
able to send and receive for a variety 
of behaviours and actions at any 
point in time. 

• Level 2 - Above & beyond 

recognition (Spire Awards) 

Monthly or quarterly awards where 
you give an award to those that are 
selected for going above and beyond 
when it comes to certain behaviours 
or actions. 

• Level 3 - Best of the best 

recognition (Spire Awards) 

Employee and Team of the year 
awards. 

Cheer for Peers, named by staff, is the first 
element to be offered and enables a thank 
you, a welcome to the team or even a happy 
birthday to be sent by colleague to 
colleagues and is available in a variety of 
formats including the staff app. Levels two 
and three are due to be implemented later 
this year. 

The ICT team considered the 
feedback received as part of their Customer 
Satisfaction Survey and recognised the old 

March 2017 March 2018 March 2019 March 2020 March 2021 March 2022

4108.31 3693.71 3829.94 3952.49 4075.73 4209.53

4108.31

3693.71
3829.94

3952.49
4075.73

4209.53

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

4500

March 2017 March 2018 March 2019 March 2020 March 2021 March 2022

Employee headcount full time equivalents (fte) 

Page 77



C
o

n
tin

u
ed

 fin
an

cial su
stain

ab
ility of the C

ouncil

 

 

64 

 

system was no longer fit for purpose. As a 
result, they introduced a new customer 
system in 2022 to replace ‘My Service Desk’ 
portal. Motion, the new customer portal, 
helps colleagues to report issues and 
request new items from ICT and Digital. 

ICT colleagues wanted the new system to 
represent Coventry and what our city is 
famous for. Coventry was previously the 
centre of the British car industry and the 
birthplace of the bicycle, so they wanted our 
new system to have a name with a strong 
connection to our city and its 
residents. Motion is our one stop shop to 
find information, access resources to help 
and solve any issues, to report issues, and 
request anything new. 

Agile, flexible, and 
responsive workforce 

Further increase in full-time 
equivalent employees 

There were 4,209.53 full-time equivalent 
(fte) employees in the Council at the end of 
March 2022, an increase of 133.80 fte 
compared to a year ago. This is the fourth 
year there has been an increase following 
many years of reducing number of 
employees. 

Some of the increase this year will, again, 
be due to the COVID-19 pandemic - where 
the additional contain outbreak 
management funding has been used to staff 
teams supporting people to maintain self-
isolation, support businesses and 
workplaces with COVID-safe measures, and 
deliver community testing, NHS test and 
trace and welfare programmes. 

Increase in sickness absence 

 

In 2021/22, 12.97 days per FTE were lost 
due to sickness absence (excluding 
schools). The top reason for absence was 
stress, depression and anxiety followed by 
musculoskeletal problems, which is the 
same as the previous year. Coronavirus 
was the third largest cause of absence. 
There has been an increase in the sickness 
absence rate from last year. 

Agency workers 

The spend on agency workers increased in 
2021/22 by £2m: 

 

The five top service areas where agency 
workers were deployed were: Children 
Services, Streetscene & Regulatory 
Services, Adult Services, Law & 
Governance Services, and Project 
Management & Property services. Again, 
this increase can be related back to the 
impact of Covid. 

11.75 10.94 12.71 10.47 12.97
0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

March 2018 March 2019 March 2020 March 2021 March 2022

Days lost per fte Target

£1.28 £1.48
£1.95 £2.21

£6.92

£2.23
£2.43 £2.23

£2.02

£8.91

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 Total

M
il

li
o

n
s
 (

£
)

Agency Spend
2020/21 2021/22

Page 78



C
o

n
tin

u
ed

 fin
an

cial su
stain

ab
ility of the C

ouncil
 

 

65 

Workforce profile 

All Workforce data is as of 31/03/2022. 
Whole workforce figures are used, based on 
headcount, excluding schools and casual 
workers. 

In the City Council, 67.2% of the population 
is made up of females, this percentage is 
higher compared to the city’s employed 
female population of 47.8%. 49.4% of all 
Coventry’s residents are female. 

Coventry has a male population of 50.6% 
and 32.8% of males are employed in the 
City Council, this is less compared to the 
52.2% male population who are employed in 
the city and aged 16-64. 

78.5% of the City Council’s workforce is 
White British, this is more than the 71.8% of 
Coventry’s population, who are aged 16-64 
and in employment, and the 73.8% of all 
Coventry Residents who are of White 
ethnicity. 

 

20.8% of Council’s workforce is from Black 
and Minority Ethnic groups, this is less than 
the 28.2% of Coventry’s population who are 
aged 16-64 and in employment, and the 
26.2 % of all Coventry residents who are 
from Black and Minority Ethnic groups. The 
ethnicity of 11.5% of the Council’s workforce 
is unknown. 

6.9% of the Council’s employees declared 
having a disability compared to 17.7% of all 
Coventry’s residents who have a disability. 
The disability status is unknown for 14.3% 
of the City Council’s workforce. 

75.7% of the Council’s employees are within 
the age band of 35-64 and this is higher in 
the Council than it is in the rest of the city - 
58.5% of Coventry’s employed population is 
aged between 35-64. 

 

 

  

Page 79



C
o

n
tin

u
ed

 fin
an

cial su
stain

ab
ility of the C

ouncil

 

 

66 

 

Continued financial sustainability of the Council 
metrics 
New metrics are highlighted in yellow, and metrics not included in the draft One Coventry Plan 2022-30 are highlighted in grey. 

Metric Previous Current Comparators Progress Target Status 

Business rates total rateable 
value (and collection rate) 

£317m (91.3%) 
(2020/21)  

£315m (95.7%) 
(2021/22) 

WMCA 91.5% (2020/21), 
England 93.0% (2020/21)  

95%+ 
 

Council tax collection rate 94.4% (2020/21) 94.0% (2021/22) 
 WMCA 94.7% (2020/21), 
England 95.7% (2020/21) 

 

95%+ 
 

Core employee headcount (full-
time equivalents, fte) 

4,075.73 (March 
2021) 

4,209.53 (March 
2022) 

N/A 
 

None set 
 

Council staff sickness absence 
(rolling twelve-month period) 

10.47 days per fte 
(2020/21) 

 12.97 days per fte 
(2021/22) 

N/A 
 

10 days  
 

Spend on agency staff 
£6,921,314 
(2020/21) 

£8,914,227 
(2021/22) 

N/A 
 

To reduce 
 

Participation in the staff survey  
1,560 (33%) 

(January 2021) 
1,323 (27%) 

(September 2021) 
N/A 

 
To increase 

 

Workforce representative of the 
age, gender, and ethnic profile 

of the city 

Metric to be 
developed 

Metric to be 
developed 

N/A 
 

To increase 
 

Number of transactions 
completed through self-service 

channels 
352,751 (2020/21)  415,254 (2021/22) N/A 

 

To increase 
 

Households with access to full 
fibre and/or gigabit internet 

75.4%/ 91.5% 
(January 2021) 

91.9% / 94.8% 
(January 2022) 

UK 33% / 66% 
 (January 2022)  

To increase 
 

Households at risk of digital 
exclusion (Measure of digital 

inclusion/exclusion) 

New metric, not 
available 

3.44 (October 
2021) 

WMCA 3.55 (October 
2021), CWLEP 3.59 

(October 2021)  
To decrease 

 

Sustainable medium-term 
financial position 

New metric, not 
available 

Balanced budget 
2022/23 – future 

years show a deficit 
N/A 

 

Sustainable 
 

Savings targets met 
Metric to be 

designed 
Metric to be 

designed 
N/A 

 

To increase 
 

Balanced budget position (in-
year) 

Metric to be 
designed 

Balanced budget 
achieved 

N/A 
 

To increase 
 

Investment income secured £1.1m (2020/21) £2.2m 2021/22 N/A 
 

To increase 
 

Page 80



C
o

n
tin

u
ed

 fin
an

cial su
stain

ab
ility of the C

ouncil
 

 

67 

Metric Previous Current Comparators Progress Target Status 

Customer telephone contact 
answered (capture rate) 

94% 2020/21 79% 2020/21 N/A 
 

None set 
 

 

  

Page 81



C
o

n
tin

u
ed

 fin
an

cial su
stain

ab
ility of the C

ouncil

 

 

68 

 

 

www.coventry.gov.uk/performance

Page 82



 

 

One Coventry Plan
Performance Management Framework 2022

www.coventry.gov.uk/performance

  

Page 83



Per
for

ma
nce

 M
an

age
me

nt 
Fra

me
wo

rk
 

 

2 

Table of contents 
1 Introduction ............................................................................. 3 

2 The Council’s approach .......................................................... 3 

3 Improving outcomes relevant to people’s lives ..................... 3 

Balanced scorecard approach .............................................. 3 

Story of change ..................................................................... 3 

Beyond metrics ..................................................................... 3 

4 Key documents ....................................................................... 4 

One Coventry Plan ................................................................. 4 

Key strategies ........................................................................ 4 

Action plans ........................................................................... 4 

Appraisals .............................................................................. 4 

5 Value & behaviours ................................................................. 4 

6 Performance metrics .............................................................. 5 

7 Reporting arrangements ......................................................... 5 

Reports .................................................................................. 5 

Performance Hub .................................................................. 6 

8 Symbols and vocabulary ........................................................ 6 

9 Find out more .......................................................................... 6 

How do I… ............................................................................ 7 

 

 

  

Page 84



Performance Management Framework
 

 

3 

1 Introduction 
Organisational performance management helps us ensure we 

achieve what we set out to do. It does so by setting out how 

we plan and organise our resources to achieve the things we 

want to do – our vision and priorities, as set out in the One 

Coventry Plan.  

By aligning our resources, actions and activities to the 

Council’s vision, priorities and desired outcomes, it helps us 

measure how public money is turned into results for citizens. 

2 The Council’s approach 
Performance management is everyone’s responsibility, and it 

is also part of our day-to-day operation. The performance 

management cycle is made up of: 

• planning – developing a strategy or plan;  

• doing – implementing the strategy/plan and 

undertaking the activities;  

• reviewing – monitoring the implementation of the 

plan, through performance dashboards and metrics; 

and  

• revising – revising a strategy or plan following the 

review. 

Our performance management framework recognises the 

diversity of our business and is mindful that services already 

respond to a wide range of other performance management 

arrangements, e.g., statutory returns, partnership working 

arrangements, and different legal, regulatory, or policy 

frameworks.  

Consequently, the Council’s performance management 

framework is not about adding yet another layer of 

bureaucracy, metrics, or targets on top of what is already 

required of managers. Instead, this framework builds on the 

systems and processes already in place, while ensuring a 

unified, One Coventry approach, striking a balance between 

minimising administrative burden and ensuring commonality 

across the organisation. Additionally, as we increasingly 

deliver our priorities in partnership, where we commission, 

champion, or co-ordinate services with partners and 

communities, we need to ensure that we work together for 

the good for Coventry people. 

3 Improving outcomes relevant to 

people’s lives 

Balanced scorecard approach 
The Council uses a balanced scorecard approach to manage 

its performance. That is, we recognise that we cannot rely 

solely on financial metrics (whether we balanced our budget 

or not) to measure our performance. Instead, we monitor our 

performance using outcomes, finance, workforce, and quality 

metrics to ensure strategy is aligned to delivery. 

Outcomes 

Service outputs and 

outcomes. 

Finance  
Budgets, financial inputs, 

profit/loss. 

Workforce 

Our people. 

Quality  
Satisfaction, complaints, 

timescales. 

Story of change 
A story of change (also known as a theory of change or logic 

model) approach is the recommended approach for setting 

out how a proposed public sector intervention will transform 

its inputs or resources into outputs, and outcomes. Further 

exploration of the use of a story of change approach can be 

found on GOV.UK. 

Beyond metrics 
To fully tell the story of change, the Council’s performance 

management framework also recognises that red-amber-

green ratings – even the outcomes, workforce, and quality 

metrics of a balanced scorecard – only tell a part of the story; 

and therefore, the use of qualitative case studies and 

narratives are highly recommended – and this is indeed the 

approach adopted in the One Coventry Plan to demonstrate 

how outcomes for Coventry residents are delivered by public 

services working in partnership with our communities and 

partners. 

Page 85

https://www.coventry.gov.uk/councilplan
https://www.coventry.gov.uk/councilplan
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/evaluation-in-health-and-well-being-overview/introduction-to-logic-models


Per
for

ma
nce

 M
an

age
me

nt 
Fra

me
wo

rk
 

 

4 

4 Key documents 
The Council’s vision is connected to its delivery at every level 

of the organisation, from the One Coventry Plan to employee 

appraisals. 

One Coventry Plan 
The One Coventry Plan is the organisation’s top-level strategy 

setting out our vision and priorities. In other authorities this 

may be called a corporate plan or corporate strategy. 

The Plan is agreed by Full Council; and is the day-to-day 

responsibility of Corporate Leadership Team along with 

Cabinet and Scrutiny Co-ordination Committee. 

Progress towards the Plan is formally reported annually to 

Cabinet and Scrutiny Co-ordination Committee; and, more 

informally shared with all members via an annual all 

members’ performance seminar. 

Key strategies 
The organisation has a set of key strategies setting out how it 

will achieve the One Coventry Plan vision. Typically, strategies 

set out the strategic direction to deliver a key priority, 

including key objectives, deliverables and targets. Examples 

include our Local Plan, Housing and Homelessness Strategy, 

Cultural Strategy, Green Space Strategy, and Health and 

Wellbeing Strategy. 

Key strategies are the responsibility of a management team at 

an appropriate level of responsibility, along with the relevant 

cabinet member and/or board. 

Progress reported to a strategic group regularly and at least 

annually to relevant cabinet member and/or board. 

Action plans 
Underneath each key strategy are a series of work plans or 

action plans. These set out how we deliver the strategy. For 

instance, a work plan or action plan will set out the activities, 

timescales, resources and responsibilities, translating 

strategies into operational activities. Examples include  

Action plans are the responsibility of a service or team; and 

progress should be reported regularly to managers 

responsible for a strategy. 

Appraisals 
Individual employees are all subject to annual appraisals. 

These set out objectives for an individual and their progress 

towards their objectives and progress towards the expected 

standards and behaviours, along with the One Cov values. 

Responsibility for appraisals sit with individual employees and 

their manager. Each employee must have an annual appraisal; 

with objectives and progress reviewed regularly through one-

to-one meetings. 

5 Value & behaviours 
In addition to what we do – our vision and strategy, it is 

important to consider how we do it – our values and 

behaviours/principles. The following sets out what effective 

performance management means in line with the Council’s 

One Coventry Values and Behaviours. 

Our One Coventry Values are: 

• Open and fair – we are fair, open, and transparent. 

• Nurture and develop – we help and encourage 

everyone to be their best and do their best. 

• Engage and empower – we talk and listen to others, 

working together as one. 

• Create and innovate – we embrace new ways of 

working to continuously improve. 

• Own and be accountable – we work together to 

deliver the best services for our residents. 

• Value and respect – we put diversity and inclusion 

at the heart of all we do. 

In addition to the performance management framework, these 

values are part of the Council’s reward strategy, appraisals, 

recruitment, attraction and onboarding, recognition and 

development, and employee engagement. 

Our behaviours are also aligned to the performance 

management framework – and the following sets out how 

performance fits in with the six core behaviours: 

• Putting customers first – goals or targets are 

challenging but achievable and realistically reflects 

Page 86



Performance Management Framework
 

 

5 

the level of funding and resources available – so that 

we deliver the best possible outcomes for the 

people of Coventry. Services do not shy away from 

setting a goal or target when it would be appropriate 

to do so; and management also recognises that 

goals and targets can change as the situation 

requires. 

• Being adaptable – performance management 

adapts to needs of each service including the legal, 

regulatory, policy frameworks of each area; as well 

as the needs of the organisation. Where possible, 

services are flexible to work together to adopt 

common reporting arrangements. 

• Always improving – a learning culture where 

performance management is used to understand 

what went well, what didn’t work as planned, and 

what can be done better. There is no blame culture; 

poor performance is not used to apportion blame to 

a service area; but is used to help recognise where 

things can be done better. 

• Working together – where possible, performance 

information is shared openly between people who 

need to or have a right to know; whether they are in 

another part of the Council or in a partner 

organisation. Information is shared by default, and 

not suppressed just because they may reveal 

something uncomfortable. 

• Leading by example – everybody works together 

collaboratively and recognises that they have a role 

in the organisation’s performance management no 

matter where they are in the formal hierarchy; and 

everyone takes steps to ensure information is 

recorded accurately. 

• Understanding how we work – to ensure that 

performance reports and dashboards provide the 

right information to the right people at the right time. 

Services work together to having a simple, 

consistent set of performance metrics to minimise 

duplication: write once, use anywhere. 

6 Performance metrics 
Where required by a funding body, or where appropriate, 

progress may be monitored using a consistent set of 

headline metrics. To fully document a story of change, a 

wider basket of metrics including lag (output oriented, easy to 

measure but harder to influence) and lead (more input 

oriented, hard to measure but easy to influence) metrics may 

be drawn on to explain the trends and stories behind the 

headlines. These may include: 

• outcomes that our strategies can influence but not 

directly control (e.g. long-term ones like life 

expectancy or short-term ones like unemployment); 

• outputs showing how much a service has delivered 

of something (e.g. jobseekers supported); 

• inputs demonstrating efficiency in our resource 

usage (e.g. savings delivered); and  

• perceptions showing what residents think of our 

services (e.g., respondents satisfied). 

These may be quantitative metrics; but could also be 

qualitative metrics, as appropriate to need. 

When setting performance metrics, we should be mindful that 

we are responsible for a diverse range of services, including 

services which we: 

• directly provide through staff we directly employ;  

• commission through private, voluntary or public 

sector providers;  

• deliver in partnership or co-ordination with others; 

and 

• do not provide, but we champion or support 

through our political leadership or other forum. 

To measure our performance, it is important to recognise that 

we are one organisation in a complex, interconnected web of 

people, interests, organisations, and systems. This means 

that performance metrics need to be set carefully; 

considering, amongst other things: statutory requirements; 

priorities; resources; and how we compare to other relevant 

places. In addition, it is recommended that metrics are set in 

consultation with frontline staff, and discussed with 

clients/customers/service users – and finally, reviewed and 

agreed by managers with the relevant cabinet member, in line 

with the relevant strategy. 

7 Reporting arrangements 

Reports 
The Council strives to be open and transparent, and in line 

with our digital strategy priority to maximise the value in our 

Page 87



Per
for

ma
nce

 M
an

age
me

nt 
Fra

me
wo

rk
 

 

6 

data and information, we make all of our key performance 

reports publicly available on the Council website. 

Our current performance reporting arrangements consist of: 

• an annual performance report to Cabinet and 

Scrutiny Co-ordination Committee summarising the 

Council’s progress towards its priorities, including 

inequalities (protected characteristics under the 

Equality Act and health inequalities as a Marmot 

city);  

• an annual members seminar summarising our 

performance;  

• live, web-based performance information setting out 

a publication schedule, trends/comparators, 

progress reports, maps and infographics; and  

• metrics published as open data on GitHub. 

Performance Hub 
The Council’s Performance Hub sets out guidance for 

performance management alongside performance 

dashboards and data. This is accessible to all Coventry City 

Council members and officers on SharePoint at 

https://coventrycc.sharepoint.com/sites/PerformanceInfoHub. 

8 Symbols and vocabulary 
The Council has a consistent set of symbols and vocabulary 

used to describe the performance of its services. Two 

columns are used to describe performance:  

• progress (whether something has improved or 

worsened); and  

• target status (whether or not a target has been 

met). 

The following table sets out the symbols and its definition: 

Symbol Progress Target status 

 
Improved (or target already 

achieved) 
On-target 

 Got worse Off-target 

 
Similar, unchanged or 

statistically insignificant 
– 

 
Cannot say; no clear 

direction of travel 
– 

 
Not available or no updated 

data 
No target set 

 

In the One Coventry Plan annual performance report, metrics 

and symbols are used as one part of a wider performance 

report – the context and narrative are just as important. 

 

9 Find out more 
Further guidance on performance management is available on 

the Performance Hub at: 

https://coventrycc.sharepoint.com/sites/PerformanceInfoHub  

In addition, a wealth of information and statistics is available 

on the Council’s website including: 

• Information and statistics hub: 

https://www.coventry.gov.uk/infoandstats 

• Facts about Coventry:  

https://www.coventry.gov.uk/factsaboutcoventry  

• Coventry Citywide Intelligence Hub: 

https://www.coventry.gov.uk/citywideintelhub  

• One Coventry Plan: 

https://www.coventry.gov.uk/councilplan 

• Performance: 

https://www.coventry.gov.uk/performance 

• Policies and strategies: 

https://www.coventry.gov.uk/policy 

Page 88



Performance Management Framework
 

 

7 

How do I… 
The Insight Team may be able assist your Coventry City 

Council service in improving your performance: 

 

Contact us: insight@coventry.gov.uk 

Version control 

Version 

2022 

Document Owner 

Si Chun Lam 

Insight Manager (Intelligence) 

SiChun.Lam@coventry.gov.uk  

insight@coventry.gov.uk  

Document Location 

https://www.coventry.gov.uk/performance-1/council-plan-

performance-reports/2  

https://coventry-city-council.github.io/performance/framework/  

Reviewing arrangements 

The performance management framework is to be reviewed 

as we work on a revised One Coventry Plan 2022-30. 

07/07/2022 15:56:29 

How do I... get facts and figures about the city and its 
people?

•Visit Facts about Coventry for key numbers and how 
we compare to other places

•Browse the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment to 
understand assets and needs in the city’s communities

•Look at the Citywide Intelligence Hub for details, 
numbers and links to data sources

How do I... use insight to improve what we do?

•See: understand how you are currently doing and 
how that’s changed over time

•Judge: Compare and contrast what you’re doing with 
other places and with local population groups and 
possible future demand to identify gaps and 
inequalities - in particular, how policies or decisions 
affect people who are protected under the Equality 
Act; as well as health inequalities

•Act: Plan what you want to do given the resources 
available, involving and consulting with users and 
wider communities

How can insight and communities help you?

•We can signpost you to the right place – Facts about 
Coventry, Citywide Intel Hub; reports like our 
Performance Report or JSNA; or external sources.

•We can help you understand your data – what is it 
telling you? How does it compare to the population? 
(e.g. Acorn geodemographic segmentation)

•We can support you through the Equality Impact 
Assessment (EIA)

•We can help you reach the right communities – via 
Let’s Talk Coventry for example.

Page 89

mailto:insight@coventry.gov.uk
mailto:SiChun.Lam@coventry.gov.uk
mailto:insight@coventry.gov.uk
https://www.coventry.gov.uk/performance-1/council-plan-performance-reports/2
https://www.coventry.gov.uk/performance-1/council-plan-performance-reports/2
https://coventry-city-council.github.io/performance/framework/


 

 

www.coventry.gov.uk/performance

 

Page 90



 Briefing note  
  

 

To: Scrutiny Co-ordination Committee                                                           Date: 20th July 2022 
 
Subject:  One Coventry Plan 2022-2030: Engagement Approach and Emerging Themes 
    

 

 

1 Purpose of the Note 
1.1 This note offers Scrutiny Co-ordination Committee an opportunity to make any 

recommendations or comments as part of the One Coventry Plan 2022-2030 engagement 
process. It also provides an overview of the engagement approach and emerging themes. 

 

2 Recommendations 
Scrutiny Co-ordination Committee is recommended to: 

2.1 Play an active role in enabling those who live, work or study in the city to have their say on 
the One Coventry Plan and note the approach to engagement. 

 

3 Information/Background 
3.1 We are refreshing our Council Plan to ensure it reflects our aims and ambitions – and we 

want everyone to play a part. Our refreshed Plan will reflect and celebrate our One 
Coventry approach and will be known as the One Coventry Plan. 

3.2 We want to provide as many opportunities as possible for everyone who lives, works or 
studies in the city to share their thoughts and help us deliver something truly impactful.  

3.3 Workforce engagement commenced on 28th  February 2022 and public engagement 
commenced on 13th June 2022. The engagement period will end on 30th September 2022. 

 

4 Engagement approach and feedback to date 
4.1 A summary of the engagement approach and initial feedback is provided in Appendix 1. 

 

5 List of appendices 

 Appendix 1: One Coventry Plan 2022-2030: Engagement (slides) 

 

6 Other useful background papers 

 Draft One Coventry Plan 2022-2030 – Draft One Coventry Plan 2022-2030  

 
 
Michelle McGinty, Strategic Lead for Transformation and Change 
02476 971409 / Michelle.McGinty@coventry.gov.uk  

Page 91

Agenda Item 5

https://www.coventry.gov.uk/downloads/file/38412/one-coventry-plan-2022-2030-draft-for-engagement
mailto:Michelle.McGinty@coventry.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



One Coventry Plan
2022-2030 Engagement

P
age 93



Introduction

It outlines how we need 

to work with each other, 

our partners and our 

communities to achieve 

our priorities.

Workforce engagement 

started on 28th 

February 2022 and 

public engagement 

started on 13th June 

2022. Engagement will 

continue until 30th

September 2022

We want to provide as 

many opportunities as 

possible for those who 

live, work or study in 

the city to share their 

thoughts and help us 

deliver something truly 

impactful 

The One Coventry Plan 

provides Coventry City 

Council’s vision and 

objectives until 2030.

2030

P
age 94



Engagement opportunities

Survey - online and paper copies

Short survey – To capture quick feedback when interacting face to face

Workshops – online and in person

White boards – to leave comments at libraries and family hubs

Promoting and engaging when residents access frontline services

Attending community events to talk to people

Getting out and talking to people to find out what’s important to them on what the 
Coventry of 2030 should look and feel likeP

age 95



Engagement promotion
Press release

Internet news

Articles on Social Media

Screens in Broadgate, Council House, Friargate, Family Hubs and outside Transport 
Museum

Posters and hard copy surveys at libraries, family hubs and other frontline service 
locations

Existing stakeholder network groups

Community events

For our workforce - Intranet, Staff app, One Coventry Newsletter and team meetings 

P
age 96



Over to you

Please share your views as part of the engagement 
process

Any recommendations on other ways we can engage with 
our residents, particularly with harder to reach groups?

Do you have opportunities to promote the One Coventry 
Plan engagement with your constituents and local 
networks including community groups and social media?

P
age 97



Engagement themes to date
When asked to rank our priorities most people thought:

• Improving outcomes and tackling inequalities is most important 

• Tackling climate change is least important

The most prominent theme so far is the importance of community engagement

• Talking and listening to our communities
• Acting on community voice
• Reaching all diverse communities

Other emerging themes:

• Importance of collaboration

• Improving our communication

• Build on success of City of Culture and promote the city more

P
age 98



High level timeline

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb MarJun Apr onwards

Engagement period
Analysis of feedback 

Draft One Coventry Plan updated

Cabinet and Council 

decision on 

recommendations 

following engagement

Implement Plan 

(subject to political 

ratification)

Ongoing 

engagement

2022 2023 and beyond

P
age 99



Scrutiny Co-ordination Committee is asked to:

Play an active role in enabling those who live, work or 

study in the city to have their say on the One Coventry Plan 

and note the approach to engagement

Recommendation

P
age 100



SCRUCO Work Programme 2022-23 

1 
 

 
Please see page 2 onwards for background to items 

22nd June 2022 

Domestic Abuse Local Partnership Board 
Scrutiny Annual Report 2021-22 

20th July 2022 

One Coventry Annual Performance Report 
One Coventry Plan Engagement 

28th September 2022 

Skills Resilience 

9th November 2022 

PSPO’s 
Community Safety Strategic Assessment 
One Coventry Plan 

14th December 2022 

Coventry City of Culture Legacy 

18th January 2023 

Rough Sleeper Drug and Alcohol Treatment Grant 

1st March 2023 

HoldCo Annual Report 
Coventry and Warwickshire Health Inequalities Strategic Plan 

19th April 2023 

Suggested items for 2022-23 – date to be agreed 

One Coventry Plan Refresh 
The cost of living crisis – including food banks and the energy crisis 

CCC Transformation Programme 
Economic Impact of Brexit 
Climate Change Action Plan 
Health Inequalities and Marmot 
Spon End Regeneration Project 

Last updated 11th July 2022 

Page 101

Agenda Item 6



SCRUCO Work Programme 2022-23 

2 
 

Date Title Detail Cabinet Member/ Lead 
Officer 

22nd June 
2022 

Domestic Abuse Local 
Partnership Board  

A report on progress on the Domestic Abuse Local 
Partnership progress including benchmarking data and duties 
under the Domestic Abuse Act 

Cllr AS Khan/ Cllr P 
Akhtar 
Public Health reps 

 Scrutiny Annual Report 2021-
22 

To consider the 2021-22 Annual Report Cllr N Akhtar 

20th July 
2022 

One Coventry Annual 
Performance Report 

To scrutinse the One Coventry Annual Performance report 
and for Scrutiny Board Chairs to identify areas of work for 
their Boards to scrutinise in detail. 

Cllr Duggins 
Allison Duggal 
Kirston Nelson 

 One Coventry Plan 
Engagement 

This item will outline the engagement work being delivered 
around the One Coventry Plan Refresh. SCRUCO comments 
will be fed into the engagement work. 

Cllr Duggins 
Kirston Nelson 

28th 
September 
2022 

Skills Resilience  An item referred from SB1,2 & 3 to look at how the Council is 
working with businesses, training providers and schools 
including apprenticeships to ensure the city has the skills 
needed for employment and economic development. Also 
looking at how to address barriers to employment for specific 
groups including SEND young people 

Cllr O’Boyle 
Cllr Seaman 
Kim Mawby/ Steve Weir  

9th 
November 
2022 

PSPO’s  To consider all of the PSPO’s across the city to look at the 
data to evaluate their effectiveness, to include Police reps. 

Liam Nagle 
Cllr AS Khan 

 Community Safety Strategic 
Assessment  

To scrutinise the data within the Community Safety Strategic 
Assessment. 

Cllr AS Khan/ Craig 
Hickin 

 One Coventry Plan To consider the final One Coventry Plan before the report is 
taken to Cabinet in December. 

Cllr Duggins 
Kirston Nelson 

14th 
December 
2022 

Coventry City of Culture 
Legacy  

To consider the last legacy from City of Culture 2022. To 
consideration of the final evaluation report. 

Cllr Duggins 
David Nuttall 

    

P
age 102



SCRUCO Work Programme 2022-23 

3 
 

Date Title Detail Cabinet Member/ Lead 
Officer 

18th 
January 
2023 

Rough Sleeper Drug and 
Alcohol Treatment Grant 
 

The Council have received a grant to deliver enhanced drug 
and alcohol treatment services to Rough Sleepers and those 
at risk of Rough sleeping. The grant was issued in December 
2021 and runs until March 2023. SCRUCO have asked to 
know how effective the measures within the grant have been. 

Cllr Caan  
Jim Crawshaw/ Rachel 
Chapman 
 

    

1st March 
2023 

HoldCo Annual Report  To receive the HoldCo Annual Report at an appropriate time 
as agreed at the meeting on 26th August 2021. 

Cllr Duggins 
Barry Hastie 

 Coventry and Warwickshire 
Health Inequalities Strategic 
Plan  

To look at the monitoring framework to monitor progress 
against targets and KPI’s. Representation from NHS partners 
to be invited. 

Allison Duggal 
Cllr Caan 

19th April 
2023 

   

    

Suggested 
items for 
2022-23 – 
date to be 
agreed 

One Coventry Plan Refresh 
 

To consider a draft of the refreshed One Coventry Plan 
presented to Cabinet. The committee will be able to make 
recommendations to Council. To also consider the 
community engagement and public consultation plans. Also, 
to consider how the Anchor Alliance will support delivery of 
the Plan 

Cllr Duggins 
Kirston Nelson 
Vanessa Millar 

 The cost of living crisis – 
including food banks and the 
energy crisis  
 

Identified at SCRUCO 16.02.22. To scrutinise the impact of 
the energy crisis and what support is available to support 
local residents. Council Tax rebate. Revs and Bens. Include 
case studies. Use of credit unions and loan sharks. 

Cllr O’Boyle/ Cllr Caan 
/Bret Willers 

 CCC Transformation 
Programme 

  

 Economic Impact of Brexit 
 

An update report on the impact of Brexit on the local 
economy, including information on sector-by-sector feedback, 
be submitted to a future meeting of the Board in twelve 

Cllr O’Boyle  
Steve Weir 
 

P
age 103



SCRUCO Work Programme 2022-23 

4 
 

Date Title Detail Cabinet Member/ Lead 
Officer 

months and the Board’s work programme be updated 
accordingly. Follow up to meeting in Nov 2021 

 Climate Change Action Plan Identified at SCRUCO 16.02.22. What consultation has been 
undertaken for this item? Invite in key stakeholders. 

Cllr O’Boyle  
Bret Willers 

    

 Health Inequalities and 
Marmot  

To look at what the Council is doing to address health 
inequalities and to monitor progress 

Allison Duggal 
Cllr Caan 

 Spon End Regeneration 
Project 

How is it funded? How have people have been relocated? 
What are the plans? How are plans communicated with the 
community? 

 

 

P
age 104


	Agenda
	3a To agree the minutes of the previous meeting held on 22 June, 2022
	4 One Coventry Plan Annual Performance Report 2021-22
	04) Appendix 1
	One Coventry Plan Annual Performance Report 2021-22
	Table of contents
	Infographics
	Overview
	What is One Coventry?
	What is the One Coventry Plan?
	About this report
	Metrics
	Abbreviations & symbols used


	Executive summary
	Performance towards the One Coventry Plan 2016-2024
	Baseline towards the One Coventry Plan 2022-2030

	Increasing the economic prosperity of the city and region
	A challenging global economic context
	Working with existing businesses in the city to grow and expand
	Grants to businesses
	Business support programmes

	Investing in transport and digital infrastructure
	Coventry Railway Station

	Delivering a capital regeneration programme
	City Centre South
	Increasing hotel capacity
	Friargate business district

	Delivering a strong and tangible legacy of opportunity
	UK City of Culture 2021
	Supporting the creative, cultural and tourism sector
	Recovery in city centre footfall
	HMV’s 100th birthday concert
	Godiva Festival 2021
	Festival of Running 2021
	Birmingham Commonwealth Games 2022
	International Children’s Games 2022
	Rugby League World Cup 2022
	National Collections Centre

	Helping people into work
	Employment rate
	Unemployment rate
	Personalised job support
	New jobs supported

	Actively supporting residents to improve their skills and secure better jobs
	Qualifications
	Training for accredited qualifications
	Apprenticeship Levy
	Supporting young people into work
	Job placements through Kickstart
	Destinations of school leavers 16+
	Young people not in education, employment, or training

	Working with partners to ensure the continued provision of high-quality affordable housing throughout the city
	Increasing the economic prosperity of the city and region metrics

	Improving outcomes and tackling inequalities within our communities
	Effectively delivering the essential services that matter most to our communities
	Cleaner streets, supported by action against fly-tipping

	Strengthening our Marmot city approach, encouraging healthy lifestyles and provide quality healthcare
	Life expectancy
	Healthy life expectancy
	Overweight and obese children
	10,000 get active at this year’s Sports Fest
	A food resilient city where no one goes hungry

	Tackling inequalities through a collaborative approach
	Improving how we work with residents and communities
	Engaging local communities
	Community and neighbourhood integration
	Engagement with local stakeholder groups
	Monthly newsletter
	Meeting the public sector equality duty
	Health and Wellbeing Awards

	Tackling violence, including domestic abuse and sexual violence
	Increase in crime
	Reduction in youth offending
	Hate crime
	Domestic abuse
	Additional support for victims of domestic abuse and their children

	Affordable access to heating, and insulation
	Increase in the cost of living
	Housing energy performance
	Improving the energy efficiency of housing

	Protecting children and supporting families to give children the best start in life
	Reduction in the number of looked after children
	Repeat referrals to children’s social care
	Looked after children previously looked after

	Integrated early help, education partnership work and implementing the Family Valued programme
	Children living in low-income families
	Low-income family tracker project
	Supporting families through receiving the right help at the right time

	Improving the educational attainment of our children and young people
	School performance
	Pupil attainment
	Key stage 4
	Key stage 5

	Supporting children most affected by disruption to their learning
	School readiness
	Holiday and food programmes
	Expansion of free school meal uptake

	Enabling people to live independently
	People receiving support from adult social care and their carers
	Satisfaction with adult social care
	Short-term reablement services
	Impact of adult social care services on self-reported quality of life
	Safeguarding adults
	Statutory homelessness
	More homelessness cases prevented and relieved
	Meeting the needs of more complex cases facing homelessness issues

	Supporting people experiencing mental ill-health
	Supporting children and young people
	Transforming mental health services

	Integrating our refugee and migrant communities
	Migration in numbers

	Improving outcomes and tackling inequalities within our communities metrics

	Tackling the causes and consequences of climate change
	Sustainability and climate change
	Tackling the causes and consequences of climate change
	Independent Coventry Climate Change Board
	Five development pathways

	Low emissions pathway
	Council’s carbon emissions
	Carbon disclosure
	Supporting businesses
	Road network quality
	Fewer priority potholes
	Road treatment programmes
	Zero carbon vehicles
	Charging points

	Circular economy
	Recycling and composting

	Nature and resilience
	A tree for every citizen
	Urban forestry strategy

	Equitable and people-centred
	Air quality
	Road casualties

	Tackling the causes and consequences of climate change metrics

	Continued financial sustainability of the Council
	Balancing future budgets and bridging budget gaps
	In-year budget position
	Medium-term financial position
	Percentage of Council tax collected reduced
	Delivery of savings targets
	Investment income secured
	Financial position

	Enhancing our digital offer
	Digital inclusion and accessibility
	Digital exclusion
	Internet user classification
	Increase in self-service transactions

	Retaining and developing talented staff
	Workforce engagement

	Agile, flexible, and responsive workforce
	Further increase in full-time equivalent employees
	Increase in sickness absence
	Agency workers
	Workforce profile

	Continued financial sustainability of the Council metrics


	04 - Appendix 2
	One Coventry Performance Management Framework
	Table of contents
	1 Introduction
	2 The Council’s approach
	3 Improving outcomes relevant to people’s lives
	Balanced scorecard approach
	Story of change
	Beyond metrics

	4 Key documents
	One Coventry Plan
	Key strategies
	Action plans
	Appraisals

	5 Value & behaviours
	6 Performance metrics
	7 Reporting arrangements
	Reports

	6 Performance metrics
	7 Reporting arrangements
	Reports
	How do I…
	Version control
	Version
	Document Owner
	Document Location
	Reviewing arrangements




	5 One Coventry Plan 2022 - 2030: Engagement Approach and Emerging Themes
	05 - Appendix - Presentation
	05a) Appendix - Presentation Slides 2
	One Coventry Plan�2022-2030 Engagement
	Introduction
	Engagement opportunities
	Engagement promotion
	Over to you
	Engagement themes to date
	High level timeline
	Slide 8 



	6 Scrutiny Co-ordination Committee Work Programme and Outstanding Issues 2022/23

